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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

APPROVAL AND CERTIFICATION

| am responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements,
which are set out on pages 2 to 66, in terms of Section 126(1) of the Municipal
Finance Management Act and which | have signed on behalf of the Municipality.

I certify that the salaries, allowances and benefits of Councillors as disclosed in note
25 of these annual financial statements are within the upper limits of the framework
envisaged in Section 219 of the Constitution, read with the Remuneration of Public
Officer Bearers Act and the Minister of Cooperative Governance and Traditional
Affairs determination in accordance with this Act.

MUNICIPAL MANAGER DATE
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ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalenis

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Other receivabies from non-exchange transaclions
Inventories

Invesimants

Cument portion of receivables

VAT recelvabie

Total Curtent Assets

Nonh-current assets
Non-current recalvables
Investments

Property, plant and equipment
inlangible assets

investment property

Heritage assets

Biclogical assets

Total Non-current assets
Total Assets

LIASILITIES

Cuirent liabilities

Trade and other payahles from exchange transactions
Gansumer depasits

Cument portion of unspent sonditional grants and receipts
Current portion of bomowings

Cument portion of finance fease labifity

‘Total Current Liabilities

Non-current lfabitities

Non-current borrowings

Non-current finance lease fiability

Non-current Provisions

Total Non-current Liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets

NET ASSETS
Housing. Development
Ravaluation Reserves
[Accumnulated surplus

Total net gssets

Note

15
12

11

10
14

w
Sawsno

38
35

w

GROUP MUNICIPALITY
2013 2012 2013 2012
R ’ R R
54,154,796 13,603,519 52,081,276 11.273.530
355,993,145 261,765,245 352,045,801 263,462,951
19,789,631 14,938,705 19,193,398 14,061,682
53,890,856 80,155,470 53,890,856 50,155,470
220,000,000 223,808,054 220,000,600 223,808,054
7,662,736 7,502,238 8,595,490 7,502,238
21,665,832 65,908,014 21,565,832 65,008,014
733,156,696 647,602,345 727 453,653 546,161,939
2,079,219 2,823,143 7,808,093 8,667,456
84,012,380 82,764,947 67,217,189 57,217,188
5,805,426,741 5.707.376,766 5,668,973,194 5,599,536,285
17,834,302 21,750,887 17.834,302 21,750,887
234,602:329 234,602,329 234,602,329 234,602,329
11,145,452 11,145,452 11,145,452 11,145,452
13,965,348 14,609,293 13,965,349 14,609,783
&.166,065,781 6.075,072,818 5,019,645,810 5,957,978,502
6,902,222,777 6,722,755,164 5,747,000,463 6,604,090,2
290,548,180 220,002,076 288,469,461 218,418,045
66,453,928 64,595,957 53,788,114 82072,194
218,565,190 198,332,005 194,552,501 174,566,948
43,104,644 42,527,595 36,304,956 35,807 907
2,498,678 2,507,004 2,498,679 2,597,004
622,171,622 528,144,728 565,593,811 493,462,098
284,442,876 324,879,571 262,202,961 298,587 916
21,268,872.00 - 21,268,872 21,268,872
164,387,486 177,751,749 194,387 486 177,751,749
500,099,234 502,831,320 477,554,318 497 608,537
1,122,270,556 1,030,776,047 1,063,552,129 591,071,635

5,779,951,921 §,691,979,116 5,683,447 334 5,613,019,208
10,754,922 11,247,728 10,764,922 11,247,728
860,899,434 826,344,434 770,838,711 770,838,771
4,908,297,564 4,854,441,780 4,901,853,641 4,852,201,580
5,779,951,921 5,692,033,942 5,683, 447,334 5,634,288.,078




POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

REVENUE
Revenue from Exchange Transactions unless
specified otherwise

Property rates - Non Exchange Transactions

Service charges

Rental of facilities

Investment Revenus ~ external investments

Interest eamed — outstanding debtors

Fines - Non Exchange Transactions

Licensas and permits

income for agency services

Government grants racagnised - operating - Non
Exchange Transactions

Government grants recognised - capital - Non Exchange
Transactions.

Public centributions, denated and contributed property,
plant and equipment

Other revenue

Total Revenue
EXPENINTURE

Employee refated costs
Remuneration of councillors
Bad debts

Collection costs
Depreciation

Repairs and maintenance
Finance cost

Buk purchases

Grants and subsidies paid
Genaral expenses

Total Expenditure

Loss on disposal of assets

Fair value adjustment on biclogical assets
Less: Impaiment 1oss

NET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

Note

17

19
22

20

20

21
23

24
25
12

26
27
28
29

43

45

GROUP MUNICIPALITY
2013 2012 2013 2012
R [ R R
254 (11 397 226 636 759 254 720 915 229 422 689
877,945,857 791,653,078 867 518 757 781 281 433
12,467,134 5,509,961 12 467 134 5 509 961
22,198,215 23,838,217 23016 680 24 554 093
7 377 257 17 678 491 7 877 257 17 678 491
2626 889 4 496 562 2 626 839 4 496 562
8815818 8234 418 5815818 8234418
13 892 068 13 827 380 13 892 068 13 827 380
501 274 579 367 484 803
501 274 579 367 484 803
187 076 977 213 510 998
187 078 977 213 510 998
- 35649 036 - 36 649 036
83,713,723 95,865,702 3t 347 268 95 839 625
1971 400 714 1 807 385 403 1960 135 343 1 798 489 499
416,259 371 403,380,688 412 054 662 399 033 020
21922 288 20614 731 21 922288 20614731
53 466 067 38,191,983 53 486 067 38191 993
1178073 817 561 1178.073 817 561
266 686 447 235 552 261 265 100,184 231 254 348
117 114 418 96 881 394 147 114 416 96 881 394
32,205,223 31,659,238 25 594 115 29 426 603
581,300,952 518,795,538 581 300 952 518 796 538
240,000 240,000 5540000 6121695
418,612,259 287,993,707 416 742 680 281118 928
1,911,095,006 1,634,128,112 1904 033 448 1622 257 011
11,441,658 - 11,441,858 -
643944 - 643,944 -
. - 1,202,194 - 1,202 194
48,219,815.92 172,055,097.11 44 016:093 175 030 294
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPAUTY
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

GROUP MUNIGIPALITY
2013 2012 2013 2012
Note R R R R
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipted from ratepayers, government and others 4,913,527 898 1,685,161 279 1,905,879,644 1,653,901, 097
Cash paid to suppliers and employees {1,695,167,316) {1,381,$88,458) {1,693,547,148) (1,374,160,022)
Cash generated from operations 31 395,259,778 349,564,167 388 998 455 343 102 292
Interest received 30395122 42 234 432 30393 937 42 232 584
Finance cost (33979 713) {31 633 185) {29 584 115) {29 426 803)
1]

Net cash frem operating activities 391 675 187 360 165 434 389 788 277 355 308 073
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (339 662 368} {346 124 930) {339 662 368) {346 104 028)
Purchase of intangible assets - (8 399 378) - {8 399 378)
(increase)/decrease in non-current receivables {234 779) 13 598 980 {234 779) 43 598 980
(Increase)/decrease in non-cutrent investments - {60 292 289) - (58 899 800)
(Increase)/decrease In current invesiments 3 808 054 {3814 832) 3 808 054 {3814 832)
Capitalisation ¢f interest on investrent 818,203
Net cash from investment activities {335 270 890) {405 032 449) {336 089 093) {403 719 D56)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increasel(decrease) in long term loans (39859 647} 60 189 376 (35 807 207) 53336 733
Increase/(decrease) in deposits 4475768 1715920 4475 768
Increasel{decrease) in finance lease liability {3 969 295) ( 98325y (3 968 295)
Movement in accruals {75,098) 4014
Net cash from financing activities {39.934 745) 50 699 B63 {34 190 312) 53 843 206
Increasef(decrease} in ¢ash and cash equivatents .16 469 553 5,832,848 19 518 874 & 032 220
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 15 13603 615 7474049 11 273 530 I 5241 310
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 15 54 154 796 136036192 52061 276 11 273530
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Accounting Policies
1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practices {GRAP) prescribed by the Minister of Finance in
terms of General Notice 991 and 992 of 2005. These annual financial statements have been
prepared on an accruat basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost
convenlion unless specified otherwise.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, are
disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.1 Consolidation
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated annual financial statements incorporate the annual financial statements of the
municipality and the municipal entity.

The annual financial statements of the municipality and its municipal entity are used in
the preparation of the consolidated annual financial statements and are prepared as of the same
reporting period.

On acquisition the economic entity recognises the municipal entity's identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities at fair value, except for assets classified as held-for-sale which are recognised at
fair value less costs to sell.

The results of the municipal entity are included from the effective date of acquisition. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the consolidated annual financial statements of the municipal entity to bring
their accounting policies used in line with those of the municipality.

Albintra-entity transactions, balances, revenues and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

1.2 Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make esfimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and
related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgment is inherent
in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates
which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgments include:

Trade receivables / Held to maturity investments and/or loans and receivables

The municipality assesses its loans and receivables for impairment at each statement of
statement of financial performance, the municipality makes judgments as to whether there
is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from
a financial asset/liability,

The impairment for loans and receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on
historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and
other indicators present at the reporting date that comelate with defaults on the portfolio.
These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the
esfimated loss emergence period.

Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock
An allowance for stock fo write stock down to the lower of cost ar net realisable value
Management have made estimates of the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain

inventory items.
The write down is included in the impairment of assets note.

11



POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and
available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the statement of financial

position date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the municipality is

the current bid price. The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and
payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities

for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting {he future contractual cash flows at the
prime interest rate that is available to the municipality for similar financial

instruments.

Impairment testing

The municipality reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances
suggest that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The municipality has identified all its capital assets, excluding Investment Property, as non-cash generating
assets as it's the municipality's view that the primary objective of these assets are to provide a service and
not to generate a commercial return.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information
available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in note 36 -
Provisions.

Useful lives of assets

The municipality’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges. Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated useful lives.

Post-retirement benefits

The present value of the post retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income} include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post retirement obligations.

The municipality determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is
the interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash
outflows expected to be required to settle the pension obligations. In determining the
appropriate discount rate, the municipality considers the interest rates of high-quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension Bability.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based on curmrent market conditions.
Additional information is disclosed in Note 46.

Effective interest rate

The municipality used the prime interest rate to discount future cash flows.

Allowance for doubtful debts

An impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective

evidence that is irecoverable. The impairment is measured as the difference between the
debtors carrying amount and the present vatue of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

1.3 Presentation of Currency

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand which is the
functional currency of the municipality.

12



POLOIWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

1.4 Going concern assumption

in terms of the accounting standard GRAP 1 paragraphs 27 to 30 the annual financial
statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The assumption is based on the fact that
the municipality may invoke its power to levy additional rates ar taxes to enable the
municipality to be considered as a going concern even though the municipality will be
operational for extended periods with negative net assets.

However based on the current solvency and liquidity ratio’s tests performed, the
municipality's ability to operate as a going concern is under threat.

1.4.1 Housing development fund

The Housing Development Fund was established in terms of the Housing Act, (Act No. 107
of 1997}. Loans from national and provincial government used to finance housing selling
schemes undertaken by the municipality were terrminated on 1 April 1998 and fransferred to
a Housing Develepment Fund. Housing selling scheme, both complete and in progress as at
1 April 1998, were also transferred to the Housing Development Fund. In terms of the
Housing Act, all proceeds from housing developments, which include rental income and
sales of houses, must be paid into the Housing Development Fund. Monies standing to the
credit of the Housing Development Fund can be used only to finance housing developments
within the municipal area subject to the approval of the Provincial MEC responsible for
housing.

1.4.2 Revaluation Reserve

The surplus arising from the revaluation of land and buildings is credited to a revaluation
reserve. The revaluation surplus is realised as re-valued buildings are depreciated,
through a transfer from the revaluation reserve to the accumulated surplus/{deficit). On
disposal, the net revaluation surpius is transferred to the accumulated surplus/{deficit)
while gains or losses on disposal, based on re-valued amounts, are credited or charged
to the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.5 Investment property
Initial Recognition:

Investment property includes property (land or a building, or part of a building, or both land
or buildings held under a finance lease) held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than hefd to meet service delivery objectives, the production or supply of goods or
services, or the sale of an asset in the ordinary course of operations. At initiat recognition,
the Municipality measures investment property at cost including transaction costs once it
meets the definition of investment property. However, where an investment property was
acquired through a non-exchange transaction (i.e. where it acquired the investment property
for no or a nominal value), its cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. The cost of
self-constructed investment property is the cost at date of completion

Subsequent Measurement:

Investment property is measured at fair value. After initial recognition all investment property
is measured at fair value at each Statement of financial position date. No depreciation is
calculated en these properties.

1.6 Property, plant and equipment

1.6.1 Initial recognition

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure
assets) that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental ta
others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected fo be used during more than one
period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
- it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated

with the item will flow to the municipality; and
-» the cost of the item can be measured reliably

13



POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAE STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of eperating in the manner intended
by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

The cost also includes the necessary costs of dismantling and removing {he asset and restoring the site on
which it is located.

Where an asset fs acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is ifs fair value as at
date of acquisition. Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange
for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a cembination of monetary and non-
monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair vaiue (the cost). If the
acguired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the cartying amount of
the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant
and equipment.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acguire or construct an item of property, plant and
equipment and costs incurred subsequently o add to, replace part of, or service it. If a
replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment
ceases when the iiem is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.

Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one
period are included in property, plant and equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by
equipment which can only be used in connection with an item of property, plant and
equipment are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant
and equipment and which meet the recognition criteria above are included as a replacement
in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining inspection costs from
the previcus inspecfion are derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

1.6.2 Subsequent recognition

Subsequent o initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses excluding land and buildings. B392 | and is not depreciated
as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is re-valued, any accumulated depreciation
at the date of the revaluation is restated proportionately with the change in the gross carrying
amount of the asset so that the carrying amount of the asset after re-valuation equals its re-
valued amount.

Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a resuit of a revaluation, is credited directly to
a re-valuation surplus. The increase is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously regognised in surplus or
deficit.

Any decrease in an assel's carrying ameunt, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in
surplus or deficit in the current period. The decrease is debited directly to a revaluation
surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of
that asset. The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and
equipment is transferred directly to retained earnings when the asset is derecognised.

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment
is transferred directly to retained earnings as the asset is used. The amount fransferred is
equal to the difference between depreciation based on the re-valued carrying amount and
depreciation based on the original cost of the asset.

14



POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

1.6.3 Depreciation

Property, ptant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected
useful lives 10 their estimated residual vaiue. Property, plant and equipment is catried at cost
tess accumulated depreciation and any impaired costs.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:-

item Average useful life

Infrastructure

-» Roads and paving 30 years

- Pedestrian malls 5 years

-> Electricity 20-30 years
- Sewerage 15-20 years
- Water 15-20 years
~» Housing 30 years
- Refuse sites 15 years
Community

~» Recreational facilities 20 - 30 years

- Cemeteries 30 years

- Halls 30 years

- Libraries 30 years

- Parks and gardens 10 - 30 years

-> Fire services 30 years

- Clinics 20 - 30 years

- Sport fields 20 - 30 years

- Stadium 30 years

15



POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Other

- Motor vehicles 5 years
-» Plant and equipment 2-15 years

-> Security measures 3-10 years

-» Buildings 30 years
-» Specialised vehicies 10 years

-» {T equipment 3-5 years
- Office equipment 3-7 years
-» Library books 10 years

Land is not depreciated as it is regarded as having an infinite useful life.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the
end of each reporting date. If the expectations differ from previous esfimates, the change is
accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. Each part of an item of property, plant
and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is
included in the carrying amount of another asset.

1.6.4 De-recognition

ltems of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or
when there are no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of
the assef.

The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of an item of Intangible assets is included in
surplus or deficit when the items derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the de-
recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

Assets which the municipality holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as
part of the ordinary course of activities are transferred to inventories when the rentals end
and the assets are available-for-sale. These assets are not accounted for as non-current
assetls held for sale. Proceeds from sales of these assefs are recognised as revenue. All
cash flows on these assets are included in cash flows from operating activities in the cash
flow statement.

1.7 Biological Assets
Initial Recognition
A biolagical asset or agricultural produce is recognised when, and only when:

- the municipality conirols the asset as a result of past events;

- itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow
to the municipality

->and the fair value or cost of the asset can be measured reliably,

Subsequent Measurement:
Biological assets are measured at their fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs.

The fair value of livestock is defermined based on market prices of livestock of similar
age, breed, and genetic merit. The fair value of milk is determined based on market
prices in the local area. The fair value of the vine / pine plantations is based on the
combined fair value of the land and the vines / pine trees. The fair value of the raw
land and land improvements is then deducted from the combined fair value to
determine the fair value of the vines / pine trees.

A gain or loss arising on inifial recognition of agricultural produce at fair value less
estimated point-of-sale costs is included in profit or loss for the perfod in which it
arises.

Where markel determined prices or values are not available, the present value of the
expected net cash inflows from the asset, discounted at a current market-determined
pre-tax rate is used to determine fair value.

An unconditional governiment grant related to a biological asset measured at its fair

16



POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

value less estimated point-of-sale costs is recognised as income when the
government grant becomes receivable.

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, biological assets are measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided on biological assets where fair value cannot be determined,
to write down the cost, less residual value. The annual depreciation rates are based
on the following estimated average asset lives:

1.8 Heritage Assets
Recognition of Assets

Heritage assets are assets that have a cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological or
artistic significance and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and fulure generations,

A heritage asset is further recognised as an asset only if;

> itis probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the
asset will to the municipality; and
- the cost of fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Subsequent Measurement

Heritage asset is measured at its cost value and should it be acquired through a non-exchange transaction
will it be measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition and is carried at its cost less any
accumuiated impairment losses. In instances where cost is not determinable, the municipality has taken
advantage of the transitional provisions.

Heritage assets which are shown at cost, are not depreciated due to the uncertainty regarding their
estimated useful lives, as reflected below:; .

Memorials & Statues - indefinite life
Heritage Sites - indefinite life
Museums - indefinite life
Art Works - indefinite life

Although a herilage asset is not depreciated, the asset is assessed for impairment at each reporting date to
disclose whether there is an indication that it may be impaired.

De-recognition of Asset
The carrying amotnt of a heritage is de-recognised:

-> on disposal, or
- when no future economic benefits ar service potential are expected from its use or
disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition, of a heritage asset should be determined as
the difference betweén the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the
heritage asset. Such difference is recognised in surplus or deficit when the heritage asset is
derecognised.

1.9 Investment Property

Initial recognition and measurement

Investment property includes property held to eam rentals and/or for capital appreciation, rather than held to
meet service delivery objectives, the production or supply of goods or services or the sale of an asset in the
ordinary course of operations.

Investment Property is initially recognised when future economic benefits or service potential are probable
and the cost or fair value can be determined reliably.

At initial recognition, the enlity measures investment property at cost including transaction cosis once it
meets the definition of investment property.
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Where an investment property was acquired through a non-exchange transaction (L.e. where it acquired the
investment property for no or a nominal value), its cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition.

The cost of self-constructed investment property is the cost at date of completion,

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to owner accupied property (property, plant and equipment), the deemed cost for
subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner occupied property becomes an
investment property, the entity accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use.

The cost of day to day servicing of investment property is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance as incurred.

Subsequent measurement
Fair value model

Investment property is measured using the fair value model. This entails determining the fair value of
investment properties on a regular basis. To the extent that the fair value mode! is applied investment
property is not depreciated. Fair value gains / losses that result from the revaluation are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

Impairments

The entity tests for impairment where thére is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An assessment of
whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. Where the carrying
amount of an Investment Property is greater than the estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount and an impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Financial
Performance

An impairment is reversed only to the exient that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment been recognised. A reversal of the Impairment
is recognised in the Statement of Financial Perfermance

Derecognition

An Investment Property is derecognised when there is a disposal or no future economic benefits or service
potential are to be derived from the property. All gains or losses, which result from the derecognition, are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performanice.

1.10 Inventories

inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired at no cost, or for nominal
consideration, then their costs are their fair valued as at the date of acquisition.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost at reperting date comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred ir bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The cost of
inventories is assigned using the weighted average method. The same cost formula Is

used for all inventoties having a simitar nature and use to the entity.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories Is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventeries are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss ocours. The amount of any reversat of any
write-down of inventories, atising from an increase in nef realisable value, are recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Redundant and slow-moving inventories are identified and written down from cost to net
realisable value with regard to their estimated economic or realisable values.

Unsold properties are at the lower cost and net realisable value. Direct cost are accumulated
for each separately identifiable development, Cost also includes a portion of the overhead
costs.

1.11 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any confract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financiat liability or a residual interest of another entity. The amortised cost of a financial
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asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability

is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction {directly or through the use of an
allowance account) for impairment or un-collectability,

A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by an entity on terms that are not
marke! related. Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a
financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Currency risk is the risk
that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates.

De-recognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability
from an entity’s statement of financial position. The effective interest method is a method of
caicutating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of financial
assets or financial liabilities) and of aflocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,

call and similar epticns) but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes
all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part
of the effective inferest rate, (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange
Transactions) transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption
that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate
the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument {or group of financial
instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of
the financial instrument {or group of financial instruments}.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability setiled,
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

A financial asset is;

-» cash;
-» a residual interest of another entity; or
- a contractual right to:

-> receive cash or another financial asset from another entity: or
->» exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under
conditicns that are potentially favourable to the entity,

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt
instrument.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:

- deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially
unfavourable fo the entity.

Interesi rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Liguidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting
obligations asscciated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified
terms and conditions.

Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on nermal credit terms.
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:

currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. Other price risk is the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will luctuate because of changes in
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market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by faclors specific to the individua! financial instrument or its issuer, or
factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when
centractually due, Transaction costs are incrementat costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability. An incremental cost is
one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of
the financial instrument.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative
financial liabilifies that have fixed or determinable paymenis, excluding those instruments that:
- the entity designates at fair value at initiat recognition; or

- are held for trading.

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:
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- derivatives;
- combined instruments that are designated at fair value;
-» instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if:
= it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in
the near-term; or
-» on initial recognition it is part of a portfolic of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short
term profit-taking;
- non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable
’ payments that are designated at fair value at initial recognition; and
-» financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at
amortised cost or financial instruments at cost.

Classfification

The municipality has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as
reflected on the face of the statement of financiat position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category

Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost Trade and other
receivables from non-exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables from exchange fransactions Financial asset measured at
amortised cost

Long term receivables Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The municipality has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as
reflected on the face of the statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Long term lighilities Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Trade and other payables Finandial liability measured at amortised cost
Initial recognition
The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial
position when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The entity recognises financial assets using trade dale accounting.
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributabie to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset
or financial liability. The entity first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary its
loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the entity analyses a concessionary loan into its component
parts and accounts for each component separately.
The entity accounts for that part of a concessionary loan that is:
-» a social benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and

Presentation of Financial Statements, where it is the issuer of the loan; or

- non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from
Non exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan.
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Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using
the following categories:

-» Financial instruments at fair vaiue.
~-» Financial instruments at amortised cost.
- Financial instruments at cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review,
Fair value measurement considerations

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a
financial instrument is not active, the entity establishes fair value by using a valuation

technique. The objective of using a valuation technigue is to establish what the transaction
price would have been on the measurement date in an arm'’s length exchange motivated by
normal operating considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length
market transactions beiween knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, reference to the
current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by
market participants to price the instrument and that technique has been demanstrated to
provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market transactions, the entity uses
that technique. The chosen valuation technigue makes maximum use of market inputs and
relies as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market
participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent with accepted economic
methodologies for pricing financiat instruments. Periodically, an entity calibrates the
valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market
transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on
any available observable market data. The fair value of a financial liability with a demand
feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount payable on demand, discounted
from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid.

Reclassification
The entity does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:

- combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or
-» an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification.

Where the entity cannot retiably measure the fair value of an embedded derivative that has
been separated from a host contract that is a financial instrument at a subsequent reporting
date, it measures the combined instrument at fair value.

This requires a reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost or cost to fair value.
If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual inferest
measured at fair value, the entity reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The
carrying amount at the date that fair value is no jonger avallable becomes the cost.

If & reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residual interest for which a
measure was previously not avallable, and the instrument would have been required to be
measured at fair value, the entity reclassifies the instrument from cost to fair value.

Gains and losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability
measured at fair value is recognised in surplus or deficit. For financial assets and financial
liabiliies measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or
deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised er impaired, or through
the amortisaticn process.
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Irmpairment and un-collectability of financial assets

The entity assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost;

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the assel’s carrying amount and the present value of

estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced directly OR through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the
loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by adjusting an allowance
account. The reversal does not result in 2 carrying amount of the financial asset that
exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised
at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversat is recognised in surplus
or deficit.

Financial assets measured at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in
a residual interest that is not measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be
measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a simifar financial asset. Such
impairment losses are not reversed.

De-recognition

Financial assets

The enlity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
The enlity derecognises a financial asset only when:

- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or
waived,

-» the entity transfers to ancther party substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset; or

- the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, has transferred control of the asset to another party and the other
party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party,
and is able tc exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity derecognise the asset and
recegnise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the fransfer.

_The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations
retained and those transferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date.
Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values at that date. Any
difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and
derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer,

If the entity transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for de-recognition in its
entirety and relains the right to service the financial asset for a fee, it recognise either a
servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If the fee o be received is
not expected to compensate the enfity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing
liability for the servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value. if the fee to be received is
expacted to be more than adegquate compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset is
recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of
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the carrying amount of the larger financial asset.

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer
results in the entity obtaining a new financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a
servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial asset, financial liability or servicing
liability at fair value.

Cn de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for
de-recognition in its entirety, the previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is
altocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is
derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer.
For this purpose, a retained servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be
recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in
surplus or deficit.

If a transfer does not result in de-recognition because the entity has retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred asset, the entity continue to recognise
the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a financial liability for the consideration
received. in subsequent perieds, the entity recognises any revenue on the transferred

asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the
associated fiability nor the revenue, and the associated expenses are offsel.

Financial liabilities

The entity removes a financial ability {or a part of a financial liabtlity} from its statement of
financial position when it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially
different terms is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and a
new financial lfability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original
financial liability and having recegnised a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability {or part of a financial
liability) extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or fiabilittes assumed, is recognised in surplus or deficit.
Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-
exchange transaction are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on
Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers).

Presentation

Interest rejating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is
recognised as revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.

Dividends or similar distributions relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a
financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in surplus or deficit. Losses and gains
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refating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial fiability is recognised as
revenue or expense in surplus or deficit,

Distributions to holders of residual interests are debited by the entity directly to net assets,
net of any related income tax benefit [where applicable], Transaction costs incurred on
residual interests is accounted for as a deduction from net assets, net of any related income
tax benefit [where applicable].

A financial asset and a financiat liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set
oft the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that
does not qualify for de-recognition, the entity does not offset the fransferred asset and the
associated liability.

1.12 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting
period when those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to
contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is ore in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has
Habilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of
goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivabie, net of
trade discounts and volume rebates.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recagnised when all the following conditions have been
satisfied:

-» the municipality has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods;

-> the municipality retains neither continuing managerial involvemant to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

- itis probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the municipality; and

- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated
reliably, revenite associated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the transaction at the réporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be
estimated refiably when all the following conditions are satisfied;

-> the amount of revenue can be measured refiabiy;

- itis probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the municipality;

~» the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured
reliably; and

-» the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can
be measured reliably.
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When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time
frame, revenue is recognised on a straight line basis over the specified time frame unless
there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of completion. When a
specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is
postponed until the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are
recoverable. Service revenue is recognised by reference fo the stage of completion of the
transaction at the reporting date. Stage of completion is detenmined by.

Interest, royalties and dividends

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets vielding interest, royalties and
dividends is recognised when:

- Itis probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the municipality, and
- The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.
Royalties are recognised as they are eamed in accordance with the substance of the
relevant agreements.

Dividends, or their equivalents are recognised, in surplus or deficit, when the municipality's
right to receive payment has been established.

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period
during which the service is performed.

1,13 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and
receivable by a municipality, which represents an increase in net assets, other than
increases relating to contributions from owners.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic
benefits or service potential embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the
recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the
fransferor.

Control of an asset arise when the municipality can use or otherwise benefit from the asset
in pursuit of its objectives and can exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that
benefit.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or
has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value {primarily in the
form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another enfity in exchange.

Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or receivable by entities, as
determined by a court or other law enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of
laws or regulations,

Nen-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-
exchange transaction, an municipality either receives value from another municipality without
directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another municipality
without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a
transferred asset may be used, but do not specify that fufure economic benefits or service
potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed as specified. Stipulations
on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed
upon the use of a transferred asset by entifies external to the reporting municipality.

Taxes are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, in
accordance with laws and or regulations, established to provide revenue to government.
Taxes do not include fines or other penalties imposed for breaches of the law.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange
transactions, other than taxes.

Recognition
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An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is
recognised as revenue, except to the extent that a liability is also recogrised in respect of
the same inflow.

As the municipality satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an
inflow of resources from a non-exchange iransaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the
carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to
that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net
assets recognised by the municipality. When, as a resuit of a non-exchange transaction, the
municipality recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the amaunt of the
asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to
recognise a liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the
best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the
amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a Hability is
subsequenily reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfled, the
amount of the reduction in the Jiability is recognised as revenue.

Transfers

Apart from Services in kind, which are naot recognised, the municipality recognises an asset
in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and
satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset. The municipality recognises an asset in
respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset

and salisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset, Transferred assets are measured at their
fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Fines

Fines are recognised as revenue when the receivable meets the definition of an assetf and
satisfies the criteria for recognition as an asset. Assets arising from fines are measured at
the best estimate of the inflow of resources to the municipality. Where the municipality
collects fines in the capacity of an agent, the fine will not be revenue of the collecting entity.

Bequests

Bequests that satisfy the definition of an asset are recognised as assets and revenue when it
is probabte that the future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the municipality,
and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it
is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential wilt flow to the municipality
and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

1.14 Conditional Grants and receipts

Revenue recsived from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue
to the extent that the municipality has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or
obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria, conditions or
obligations have not been met a liability is recognised.

1.15 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:

-» the municipality has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

- it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service
potential will be required to settle the obligation; and

- a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to
seftle the present obligation at the reporting date. Where the effect of time value of money is
material, the amount of 2 provision is the present value of the expenditures expectad to be
required to settle the obiigation. The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current

27



POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be
reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the municipality settles the obligation.
The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to setile the obligation.
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to
reflect the passage of time. This increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision Is used only for expenditure for which the provision was originally recognised.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the
contract is recognised and measured as a provision. No obligation arises as a conseguence
of the sale or transfer of an operation until the municipality is committed to the

sale or transfer, that is, there is a binding agreement.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in business combinations that
are recognised separately are subsequently measured at the higher of:

- the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
- the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 33
1.16 Unauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure means:
~» overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote:
-» expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of @ vote or, in the case of a main
division, not in accordance with the purpose of the main division.
All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
statement of financial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The

expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered,
it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.
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1.17 Irregutar expenditure

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management
Act {Act No.56 of 2003), the Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), The Public Office
Bearers Act (Act No, 20 of 1898} or is in contravention of the Municipality's supply chain
management policy. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure.

Ireguiar expendiiure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial
Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

1.18 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been
avoided had reasonable care been exercised. All expenditure relating to fruittess and
wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financiat performance
in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance
with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as
revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.12 Comparative figures
Current year comparatives

Budgeted amounts have been included in the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the current financial year only.

Prior year comparatives

When presentation or classificalion of items in the annual financial statements is amended,
prior period comparative amounts are restated. The nature and reason for the
reclassification is disclosed. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the
current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior
year comparatives are restated accordingly.

1.20 Leases

Alease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership,

Finance leases — lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position
at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the
minitnum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is
the interest rate implicit in the lease. The lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to
each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the
remaining balance of the liability,

Operating leases — lessor

Operating lease income is recognised as an income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term
on the same basis as the lease income.

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in the statement of financial performance.
Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a skraight-line basis over the
lease term. The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the

contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset. This liability is not
discounted.
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Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.
1.21 Intangible assets
An asset is identified as an intangible asset when it:

. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred,
licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract,
assets or lability; or

. arises from confractual rights or other legal rights, regardiess whether those rights
are transferable or separate from the municipality or from other rights and
obligations.

An intangible asset is recognised when:

-» it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the
asset will flow to the entity; and
- the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

An intangible asset acquired at no or nominal cost, the cost shall be its fair value as at the
date of acquisition.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an intemnal project) is recognised as
an expense when it is incurred. An intangible asset arising from development (or from the
develepment phase of an internal project) is recognised when:

- it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or
sale.

-» there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.

-> there is an ability to use or sell it.

- it will generate probable future economic benefits.

- there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the asset,

-» the expenditurs attributable to the asset during its development can be measured
reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all
relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected
to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is not provided for these property, plant and
equipment. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis
over their useful fife.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed
every period-end. Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a definite usefui life
after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result
the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount Is amortised over its
useful life.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titfes, customer lisis and items simitar in
substance are not recognised as intangible assets.
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Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight fine basis, to their
residual valiues as follows:

Computer software, internally generated 3 - 5 years
Computer software, other 3 - 5 years

Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use.
Intangible asseis are derecognised:

- on disposal; or
-> when ne future economic benefits or service potentiat are expected from its use or
disposal.

1.22 Non-current assets held for sale

Neon-current assets are classified as "held for sale assefs" if their carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for
immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale,

which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of its carying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. A non-cumrent asset is depreciated {or amortised) while it is classified
as a "held for sale" asset,

Interest and other expenses attributable fo the liabilities of the "held for sale assets" are
recognised in surplus or deficit.

1.23 impairment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the municipality with the primary objective
of generating a commercial retum. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with
that adopted by a profit-crientated entity, it generates a commercial return.

The entity tests for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An assessment of
whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. Where the carrying
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is greater than the estimated recoverable amount (or
recoverable service amount), it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount {or recoverable

service amount) and an impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.

Where items of property, plant and equipment have been impaired, the camying value is adjusted by the
impairment loss, which is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance in the period
that the impairment is identified.

An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the camying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment been recognised. A reversal of the impairment
is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Identification

When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is
impaired. The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication
that a cash-generating asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the municipality
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
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Cash-generating units

if there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated
for the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the
individual asset, the municipality determines the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash-generating unit).

The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated 1o the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other cash-generating assets of the unit. Where a non-cash-
generating asset contributes o a cash-generating unit, a propertion of the carrying amount
of that noncash-generating asset is allocated to the carrying amouni of the cash-generating
unit prior to estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit.

Reversal of impairment loss

The municipality assess at each reporiing date whether there is any indicafion that an
impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable
amount of that asset.

Re-designation

The re-designation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset
or from a non-cash-generating asset to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is
clear evidence that such a re-designation is appropriate.

1.24 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets
Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

The entity tests for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An assessment of
whether there Is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. In assessing whether
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, management considers both external and internal
indicators {sources of information).

Where the camying amount of an ilem of property, plant and equipment is greater than the estimated
recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount), it is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount (or recoverable service amount) and an impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Financial
Performance.

Value in use

Value in use of an asset is the present value of the asset’s remaining service potential.
The present value of the remaining service potential of an asset is determined using the
following approach:

Depreciated replacement cost approach

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is
determined as the depreciated replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an
assel is the cost to replace the asset's gross service potential. This cost is depreciated to
reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset may be replaced either through reproduction
(replication) of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross service potential, The
depreciated replacement cost is measured as the reproduction or replacement cost of the
asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such
cost, o reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset.

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an “optimised”
basis. The rationale is that the municipality would not replace or reproduce the asset with a
like asset if the asset to be replaced or reproduced is an overdesigned or overcapacity
asset. Overdesigned assets contain features which are unnecessary for the goods or
services the asset provides. Overcapacity assets are assets that have a greaier capacity
than is necessary to meet the demand for goods or services the asset provides. The
determination of the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an optimised basis
thus reflects the service potential required of the asset.

32



POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Restoration cost approach

Restoration cost is the cost of restoring the service potential of a cash-generating asset to its
pre-impaired level. The present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is
determined by subtracting the estimated restoration cost of the asset from the current cost of
replacing the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment. The latter cost

is determined as the deprediated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is
lower.

Service units approach

The present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by reducing
the current cost of the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment, to conform
to the reduced number of service units expected from the asset in its impaired state. The
cusrent cost of replacing the remaining service potentiat of the asset before impairment is
determined as the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset before
impairment, whichever is lower.

Recognition and measurement

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying
amourit, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This
reduction is an impairment loss. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or
deficit. Any impairment loss of a re-valued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a
revaluation decrease. When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the
canrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset lo which it relates, the municipality
recognises a liability enly to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation {amortisation) charge for the
non-cash-generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating
asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over
its remaining useful life,

Reversal of an impairment loss

The municipality assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss recognised in prior periods for 2 non-cash-generating asset may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the
recoverable service amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment
loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment
loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined {net of
depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the assef in prior
periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately
in surplus or deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating
assel is treated as a revaluation increase. After a reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is
adjusled in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset's revised carmrying
amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Re-designation
The re-designation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset

or from a non-cash-generating asset to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is
clear evidence that such a re-designation is appropriate.
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1.25 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service
rendered by employees. A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an
insurer that is not a related party (as defined in the Standard of GRAP on Related Party
Disclosures) of the reporting entity, if the proceeds of the policy can be used only to pay or
fund employee benefits under a defined benefit plan and are not available to the reporting
entlty's own crediters (even in liguidation) and cannot be paid to the reporting entity, unless
either:

-» the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet alt
the related employee benefit obligatiens; or

-> the proceeds are refumed to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits
already paid.

Termination benefils are employee benefits payable as a result of either:

-» an entity's decision to ferminate an employee’s employment before the normal
retirement date; or

-» an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those
benefits.

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment
benefits and termination benefits) that are not due to be settled within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future
employment. Composite social security programmes are established by legislation and
cperate as multi-employer plans to provide post-employment benefits as well as to provide
benefits that are not consideration in exchange for service rendered by employees.

A construcfive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an
established patiern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current
statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities
and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other
parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.

Short-termt employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits {other than termination benefits) that
are due 1o be seftled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:

- wages, salaries and social security contributions;

-» short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave)
where the compensation for the absences is due to be settied within twelve months
after the end of the reporting pericd in which the employees render the related

employee service;

- bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months
the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related
service; and

-» non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or
services such as housing, cars and cell phones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity
recognise the undiscounted amount of short-ferm employee benefits expected fo be paid in
exchange for that service:

- as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the
mount already paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity
recegnise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the
prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash
refund; and

—» as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefits in the cost of an asset.
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The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the
employees render services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-
accumutating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measure the expected cost of
accumulating compensated absences as the additionat amount that the entity expects to pay
as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related
payments when the entity has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such
payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the ebligation can be made. A
present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the
payments.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits {other than termination benefits) which are
payable after the completion of employment. Post-employment benefit plans are formal or
informal arrangements under which an entity provides post-employment benefits for one or
more employees.

Post-empioyment benefits: Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays
fixed coniributions into a separate entity (a fund} and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity
recognise the contribution payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that
service:

- as a [liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already pafd. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for service before the
reporting date, an entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the
extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments
or a cash refund; and

- as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the
contribution in the cost of an asset.

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve

months after the end of each reporting period in which the empioyees render the related
service, they are discounted. The rate used to discount reflects the time value of money. The
currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time vaiue of money is
consistent with the currency and estimated term of the obligation.

Post-employment benefits: Defined henefit plans

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution
plans. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments (the effects of
differences between the previous actuarial assumptions and what has actuaily occurred) and
the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions. In measuring its defined benefit liability the
municipality recognise actuarial gains and losses in surplus or deficit in the reporting period
in which they occur.

Assets held by a long-term empleyee benefit fund are assets {other than non-transferable
financial instruments issued by the reporting municipality) that are held by an municipality (a
fund) that is legally separate from the reporting municipality and exists solely to pay or fund
employee benefits and are available to be used only to pay or fund employee benefits, are
rot available to the reperiing municipality's own creditors {even in liquidation), and cannot be
returned to the reporting municipality, unless either:

-3 the remaining assets of the fund are sufficient to meet alf the related employee
benefit obligations of the plan or the reporting municipality; or

-» the assets are retumned to the reporting municipality o reimburse i for employee
benefits already paid.
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Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from employee service in the current period. Interest cost is the increase during a
period in the present value of a defined benefit obligation which arises because the
benefits are one period closer to settlement.

Past service cost is the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for
employee service in prior periods, resulting in the current peried from the introduction of, or
changes to, post-employment benefits or other long-term employee benefits. Past service
cost may be either positive (when benefits are introduced or changed so that the present
value of the defined benefit abligation increases) or negative (when existing benefits are
changed so that the present value of the defined benefit obligation decreases). tn measuring
its defined benefit liability the entity recognise past service cost as an expense in the
reporting pertod in which the ptan is amended.

Plan assets comprise assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund and qualifying
insurance policies. The present value of a defined benefit obligation is the present value,
without deducting any plan assets, of expected future payments required to settle the
obligation resulting from employee service in the current and prior periods.

The retum on plan assets is interest, dividends and other revenue derived from the plan
assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets, less any
costs of administering the plan (other than those included in the actuarial assumptions used
to measure the defined benefit obligation) and less any tax payable by the plan itself.

The entity account not anly for its legal obligation under the formal terms of a defined benefit
plan, but also for any constructive obligation that arises from the municipality’s informal
practices. Informal practices give rise to a constructive obligation where the municipality has
no realistic alternative but to pay employee benefits. An example of a constructive obligation
is where a change in the municipality's informal practices would cause unacceptable
damage to its relationship with employees.

The amount recognised as a defined benefit liability is the net total of the following amounts:

- the present value of the defined henefit obligation at the reporting date;

- minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the
obligations are to be settled directly;

- plus any liability that may arise as a result of 2 minimum funding requirement

The amount determined as a defined benefit liability may be negative (an asset). The
municipality measure the resulting asset at the lower of:

-» the amount determined above; and

- the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. The present value of these
economic benefiis is determined using a discount rate which refiects the time value
of money.

Any adjustments arising from the limit above is recognised in surplus or deficit.

The municipality determine the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value
of any plan assets with sufficient regularity such that the amounts recognised in the annual
financial statements do not differ materially from the amounts that weuld be determined at
the reporting date. The municipality recognises the net total of the following amounts in
surplus or deficit, except to the extent thaf another Standard requires or permits thair
inclusion in the cost of an asset:

- current service cost;

-> inferest cost;

-> the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement rights;
- actuarial gains and losses;

- past service cost;

-> the effect of any curtailments or settiements; and

= the effect of applying the limit on a defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit liability)
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The municipality uses the Projected Unit Credit Method to determine the present value of its
defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and, where applicable, past
service cost. The Projected Unit Credit Method (sometimes known as the accrued benefit
meihod pro-rated on service or as the benefit/years of service method) sees each period of
service as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit
separately 1o build up the final obligation.

In determining the present value of its defined benefit obligations and the related current
service cost and, where applicable, past service cost, an municipality shal} attribute benefit
to periods of service under the plan’s benefit formula. However, if an employee’s service in
later years will lead to a materially higher level of benefit than in earlier years, an municipality
shall attribuie benefit on a straight-fine basis from:

- the date when service by the employee first leads to benefits under the plan (whether
or not the benefits are conditional on fusther service); until

- the date when further service by the employee will lead to no materiat amount of
further benefits under the plan, other than from further salary increases.

Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately
for each plan. The results of the valuation are updated for any material transactions and
other material changes in circumstances (including changes in market prices and interest
rates) up to the reporting date.

The municipality recognises gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined
benefit plan when the curtailment or settiement occurs. The gain or loss on a curtailment or
seftlement comprises:

-> any resulting change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation; and
- any resulting change in the fair value of the plan assets.

Before determining the effect of a curtailment or settlement, the municipality re-measure the
obligation (and the related plan assets, if any) using current actuarial assumptions (inciuding
current market interest rates and other current market prices). When it is virtually certain that
another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined
benefit obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is
measured at fair value. In all other respects, the asset is treated in the same way as plan
assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit plan is [OR is not]
presented as the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement.

The municipality offsets an asset relating to one plan against a liability relating to another
plan when the municipality has a legally enforceable right to use a surplus in one plan to
setlle obligations under the other plan and intends either to settle the obligations on a net
basis, or to realise the surplus in one plan and seltie its obligation under the other plan
simultanecusly.

Actuarial assumptions
Acluarial assumptions are unbiased and mutually compatible.

Financial assumptions are based on market expectations, at the reporting date, for the
period over which the obligations are to be settled. The rate used to discount post-
employment benefit obligations (both funded and unfunded) reflect the time value of money.

The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money
is consistent with the currency and estimated term of the post-employment benefit
obligations,

Post-employment benefit obligations are measured on a basis that reflects;

- estimated fulure salary increases;

-> the benefits set out in the terms of the plan (or resuliing from any constructive
abligation that goes beyond those terms) at the reporting date; and

-» estimated future changes in the lavel of any slate benefits that affect the benefits
pavable under a defined benefit plan, if, and only i, either:

-» those changes were enacted before the reporting date; or

-» past history, or cther reliable evidence, indicates that those state benefits will change
in some predictable manner, for example, in line with future changes in general price
levels or general salary levels.
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Assumptions about medical costs take account of estimated future changes in the cost of
medical services, resulting from both inflation and specific changes in medical costs.

Pension Obligations: The municipality and its employees contribute to 5 different Pension

Funds, of which 3 {The Municipal Employees Pension Fund, Municipal Gratuity Fund and

Samwu National Provident Fund) cater for the majority of the staff. The Joint Municipal Pension

Fund, Munricipal Employees Pension Fund, Municipal Gratuity Fund, Samwu National Provident Fund,
and National Fund for Municipal Workers are defined contribution funds.

The schemes are funded through payments to financial consultant companies or trustee-
administered funds, determined by periedic actuarial calculations. The Municipality has both
defined benefit and defined contribution plans. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that
defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. A
defined coniribution plan is a pension plan under which the Municipality pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Municipality has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Municipality pays contributions to publicly or privatety
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Municipality has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset lo the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in

the future payments is available.
1.26 Investment income

Investment income is recognised on a time-propertion basis using the effective interest
method.

1.27 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until such time as the assst
is ready for its intended use. The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is
determined as follows:

- Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of ebtaining a
qualifying asset less any investment income on the temporary investment of those
borrowings.

-» Weighted average of the borrowing cosis applicable to the municipality on funds
generally borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The borrowing
costs capitalised do not exceed the total borrowing costs incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when all the following conditions have
been met:

-» expenditures for the asset have been incurred;

- borrowing costs have been incurred; and

-> activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are
undertaken.

When the carrying amount or the expected ultimate cost of the qualifying asset exceeds its
recoverable amount or recoverable service amount or net realisable value, the carrying
amount is written down or written off in accordance with the accounting policy on Impairment
of Assets as per accounting policy number 1.21. In certain circumstances, the amount of the
write-down or write-off is written back in accordance with the same accounting policy.

Capitalisation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is
interrupted. Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or'sale are complete. All other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES 7O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

1.28 Offsetting

Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses have nat been offset except when offsetting is
required or permitted by a Standard of GRAP.

1.29 Investments

Where the carrying amount of an investment is greater than the estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and an impairment foss is
charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.30 Grants in aid

The Polokwane Munigipality transfers money to individuals, institutions and organisations.
When making these transfers, The Municipality does not: Recelve any goods or services
directly in return, as would be expected in a purchase or sale transaction Expect to be repaid
in future; or Expect a financial return, as would be expected from an investment

These transfers are recognised in the financial statements as expenses in the period that the
events giving rise to the transfer cccurred.

1.31 Presentation of Budget Information in the Financial Statements

The Municipality shall present a comparison of the budget amounts for which it is held
publicly accountable and actual amounts either as a separate additional financial statement
or as additional budget columns in the financial statements currently presented in
accordance with Standards of GRAP. The comparison of budget and actual amounts shall
present separately for each level of legislative oversight:

-» the approved and final budget amounts;

- the actual amounts on a comparable basis; and

- by way of note disclosure, an explanation of maierial differences between the budget
for which the entity is held publicly accountable and actual amounts, untess such
explanation is included in other public documents issued in conjunction with the
financial statements, and a cross reference to those documents is made in the notes.

Where an entity prepares its budget and annual financial statements on a comparable basis,
it includes the comparison as an additional column in the primary annual financial
statements. Where the budget and annual financial statements are not prepared on a
comparable basis, a separate statement is prepared called the ‘Statement of Comparison of
Budget and Actual Amounts’. This statement compares the budget amounts with the
amounts in the annual financial stalements adjusted to be comparable to the budget.

A comparable basis maans that the budget and annual financial statements:

- are prepared using the same basis of accounting i.e. either cash or accrual:
- Include the same activities and entities;

-> use the same classification system; and

- are prepared for the same period.

2. New standards and interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The municipality has not applied the following standards and interpretations.
GRAP 18: Segment Reporting - Issued February 2011

Segments are identified by the way in which information is reported to management, both for
purposes of assessing performance and making decisions about how future resources will
be allocated to the various activities undertaken by the entity. The major classifications of
activities identified in budget documentation will usually reflect the segments for which an
entity reports information to management.

Segment information is either presented based on service or geographical segments.
Service segments relate to a distinguishable compenent of an entity that provides specific
outputs or achieves particular operating objectives that are in line with the entity’s overall
mission. Geographical segments relate to specific outputs generated, or particular objectives
achieved, by an entity within a particular region.
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This Standard has been approved by the Board but its effective date has not yet been
determined by the Minister of Finance. The effective date indicated is a provisional date and
could change depending on the decision of the Minister of Finance,

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 0 April 2011.

The municipality expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2012 annual financial
statements. It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the municipality's
annual financial statements,

GRAP 20: Related Party — Issued June 2011
Related party relationships exist throughout the public sector, because:

{a} The Municipalities is subject to the overall direction of an executive government or
Council and ultimately, parliament, and operate together to achieve the policies of the
govemment

(b) The Municipality conduct activities necessary for the achievement of different parts of
their responsibilities and objectives through separate centrolled entities, and through
entities over which they have significant influence

(c) Public entities enter into fransactions with other govemment entities on a regular
Basis, and

{d) Ministers, councillors or other elected or appointed members of the government and
other members of management can exert significant influence over the operations of
an entity.

The mere exislence of related party relationships means that one party can control, jointly
control or significantly influence the activities of another party. This provides the opportunity
for fransactions to occur on a basis that may give one party an advantage at the expense of
another. Therefore the disclosure of related party fransactions, outstanding balances, and
the relationship underlying those fransactions is necessary for accountability purposes.

Management could hold positions of responsibility within an entity and therefore members of
management will be responsible for the strategic direction and operational management of
an entity and are entrusted with significant authority. However, their responsibilities may
enable them to influgnce the benefits of office that flow to them, or their related parties or
parties that they represent on the governing body.

Close members of the family of persons related to the entity may influence, or be influenced
by them in their transactions with the entity,

Disclosure of related party transactions, outstanding balances, including commitments, and
relationships with related parties may affect users’ assessments of the financial position and
performance of the reporting entity and its ability to deliver agreed services, including
assessments of the risks and opportunities facing the entity. This disclosure also ensures
that the reporting entity is transparent about its dealings with related parties.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2013.
The municipality does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time as it
becomes applicable to the municipaflity's operation.

At present the impact of the standard is not material.

GRAP 25: Employee benefits - effective 1 July 2013

The objective of GRAP25 Is to prescribe the accounting and disclosure for employee
benefits.

The Standard requires a municipality to recognise:
- a liability when an employee has provided service in exchange for employee benefits

to be paid in the future; and
- an expense when an municipality consumes the econemic benefits or service
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potential arising from service provided by an employee in exchange for employee
benefits.

GRAP25 must be applied by an employer in accounting for all employee benefits, except
share based payment transactions.

-» Defined contribution plans as post-employment benefit plans under which an
municipality pays fixed contributions inio a separate entity (a fund) and will have no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hoid
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods;

- Defined benefit pfans as post-employment benefit plans other than defined
contribution plans;

>3 Multi-employer plans as defined contribution plans {other than state plans and
composite social security programmes) or defined benefit plans (other than state
plans) that:

- pool the assets contributed by various entities that are not under common control;
and

- use thuse assets to provide benefits to employees of more than one entity, on the
basis that contribution and benefit levels are determined without regard to the
identity of the municipality that employs the employees concerned:;

-»Other long-term employee benefits as employee benefits (other than post-
employment benefits and termination benefits) that is not due to be seitied within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service;

- Post-employment benefits as employee benefits (other than termination benefits)
which are payable after the completion of employment;

-» Post-employment benefit plans as formal or informal arrangements under which an
municipality provides postemployment benefits for one or more employees;

- Short-term employee benefits as employee benefits (other than temmination benefits)
that are due to be setfled within fwelve months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service;

- State plans as plans other than composite social security programmes established by
legislation which operate as if they are multi-employer plans for all entities in
economic categories laid down in legislation;

- Termination benefits as employee benefits payable as a result of either:
an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal
retirement date; or
an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those
benefits;

- Vested employee benefits as employee benefits that are not conditional on future
employment.

The standard states the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements of:

~» Short-term empioyee benefits:
- All short-term employee benefits;

- Short-term compensated absences;

-» Bonus, incentive and performance related payments;
- Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans;
- Cther long-term employee benefits;

-» Termination benefits,

The standard states Post-employment benefits: Distinction hetween defined
contribution plans and defined benefit plans:

-» Multi-employer plans;

-> Defined benefit plans where the participating entities are under common control;
- Staie plans;

-» Composite social security programmes;

-» Insured benefits.

The standard states, for Post-employment benefits: Defined benefit plans, the following
requirements:
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-» Recognition and measurement;

-» Presentation;

- Disclosure;

-» Accounting for the constructive obligation;

-» Statement of financial position;

-» Asset recognition ceiling;

->Asset recognition ceiling: When a minimum funding requirement may give rise to a
liability;

- Statement of financial performance.

The standard prescribes recognition and measurement for

-» Present value of defined benefit obligations and current service cost:
-» Actuarial valuation method;

-3 Aftributing benefits to periods of service;

- Actuarial assumptions;

-» Actuarial assumptions: Discount rate;

- Actuarial assumptions: Salaries, benefits and medical costs;
-> Actuarial gains and losses;

- Past service cost.

-. Plan assets:

-» Fair value of plan assets;

~» Reimbursements;

- Retun on plan assets.

The standard also deals with Entity combinations and Curtailments and seitlements.

This Standard has been approved by the Board but its effective date has not yet been
determined by the Minister of Finance. The effective date indicated is a provisional date and
could change depending on the decision of the Minister of Finance.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2011. The
municipality expects to adopt the standard for the first fime in the 2012 annual financial
statements.

It is uniikely that the standard will have a material impact on the municipality's annual
financial statements.

"GRAP 105: Transfer of Functions between Entitics under Common Control —
Issued November 2010"

"The compliance to the standard would have no effect on the present presentation of the
Annual Financial Statement. However should in the future it be necessary to transfer
functions between entities under commeon control will the accounting policy be amended fo
cater for such transfer.”

"GRAP 106: Transfer of Function between Entities Not Under Common Controf -
Issued November 2010"

"The compliance to the standard would have no effect on the present presentation of the
Annuat Financial Statement, However should in the future it be necessary to transfer
functions between entities not under common control will the accounting policy be amended
to cater for such transfer.”

GRAP 107: Mergers — Issued November 200
"The compliance to the standard would have no effect on the present presentation of the
Annual Financial Statement. However should in the future there be a merger between

entities will the accounting policy be amended to cater for such merger transactions and
disclosure."
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GROUP MUNICIPALITY
203 2012 20_13 2012
R R R R
HOUSING DEVELOPMENT FUND
10 754 922 11 247 728 10 754 922 11247728
Unappropriated Surplus \ 7774 651 | | 8 267 757 l l 7774651 \ r 8 267 757
Loans extinguished by Government in April 1998 2979 973 2978 971 2979971 2979971
The Housing Fund is represented by the Tollowing assets and liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment 5Q7 721 507 721 507 721 507721
Housing selling scheme loans 1 605037 2 243 264 1 605 037 2 243 264
Bank and cash B 642 164 B 486 743 8642 164 8 496 743
70 754 922 11 247 728 10754 922 11 247 728
RESERVES
Revaluation Reserve 860 820 434 826 344 434 770838771 770 838 771
BORROWINGS
Non-Current Borrowings
Local Registered Stock loans 516 595 516 585 516 595 516 595
National Housing Finance Corporation - Held at fair
value 28 959603 33011343 0 Q
Arnuity loans 208 071 322 333 879 229 298071322 333 879 229
327 547 520 367 407 166 208 587 917 334 395 823
Current Portion of Borrowings 43,104,644 42,527,595 36 384 956 35 807 907
National Housing Finance Corporation - Held at fair 6,719,688 6,719,688 1] 0
Locat Registered Stock foans 150.000 o l £50 0G0 1 0
Annuity loans 36 234 956 35 807 907 36 234 956 35 807 907
] 284,442,876 324,879,671 262 202 961 293 587 916
Refer to Appendix A for more detail on long term
fiabilities.
The Fair value of alf long term loans approximates
their book value
Long term loan commitments: The Municipality had
entered into a loan agreement with the Development
Bank of Southem Africa on 18 Fehbmary 2011 to
borrow R320 million at a interest rate of B.875%
over 10 years.
CONSUMER DEPOSITS
Rentals - PHA 2,865,815 2,523,762 - -
Water and etectricity 63788 114 62 072 194 63788 114 62 072 194
66,453,929 64 595,957 63 788 114 £2072 194
Mo interest is paid on consumer deposils.
Guarantees hetd in lieu of etectricity and water .
depasits 10 221 261 8 888 046 10 221 261 B 358 046
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FROM
EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trade Creditors

Amounts received in advance
Other

Guarantees

Leave bonus (13th cheque)
Staff leave

Retention withheld or projects
Unidentified receipts

VAT Payable (Output)

CURRENT UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GRANTS
FROM GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC DONATIONS

Local Govemment Restructuring Grant

Public Transport Infrastructure and Svstems Grant
Municipal infrastructure Grant

Limpopo Provincial Government

Water Services Refurbishment Grant

Integrated Nationzl Electrification Programme Grant
Electricity Demand Side Management Grant
Heousing Accreditation Grant

Local Government Transition Grant

Local Econemic Development Grant
Neighbourhood Developmenst Parinership Grant
Expanded Public Works Programme Incentive Grant
Sport & Recreation

Local Organising Committee

National Lottery

COGHSTA grant to PHA

See note 20 and 21 for reconciliation of unspent
arants. These amounts are invested until utilised.

POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY

GROUP MUNIGIPALITY
2013 2012 2013 2012
R R R R
118 138 890 92,440 441 117 642 B27 91546 775
32 402 686 29,142,494 32079138 28 565 906
11 453 581 11,340,542 11 439 04% 11 318 258
0 261,795 0 281795
10469729 7,806,681 10 357 827 7701 607
44,300 454 43,897 065 44 166 793 43 831 646
34 326 540 35,203,058 34 326 540 35 203 058
14 536 662 14 536 662
23920 628 23 20 626
230 549 180 220,092,076 288 469 461 218 419 045
953 927 953 927 953927 953 927
42338 277 34 276 855 42338 277 34 276 855
137 656 169 111 398 780 137 656 169 111 308 780
2949710 2949 710 2949710 2949 710
2 057 877 6 407 000 2057 677 6 407 00G
1374 328 a 1374328 [
0 8 537 558 0 8537 558
364 781 349 572 364 783 349 572
849874 849 874 640874 549 874
54714 54 714 54 714 54744
] 0 ] 4
] 2464 617 0 2464 617
o 371197 0 371197
] 0 0 i}
6153 144 6153 144 6153 144 65153 144
25 012 589 23765 147 0 [V
218565190 194332 095 194 552 601 174 566 948
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POLOK\WANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES 7O THE AINANCEAL STATEMENT 5 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20JUNE 2003

GROUP
CROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Land and Bulldings Infrastruchxa Otiver and Movable]|  Flnanca lease Fotad
R R R R R
Garmulia valos 4630 June 2061 ZH10AZE, 2. Ted DIT A6 TiBs 00,302 | BABT 8" g
Cost 2,508 512349 072.014.58 245,244,534 | 11504387 5388 606,353
Accumulatod deoraciolion —cost 1613567 1237 277 130, J30.744,837) (6427 025
Acauisitions g 16,086,087 T, 144,643 ] 7 15118831
Corration. o vear o 416,716 @ [ 216716
Cavital Work inFrowess 37,736,300 172.037.109 o [ 200,773,409
Davreiniion - baged on cost (66,184,855 (100.712.325) (25184 314} {3,824 .346) (205,915 840)
Fuevalalionf impaiment -14 559,308 0 (985 B00): 0| 156,545,008}
Othor movemaniskransfers 0 1t ° ? 41}
Dooretistion- mewementsAranciors 0 a 834 348) [} 13,834,346}
Camving values al30 June 2012 TR 25352 551 B 707,316,068
Coat 547077 ] 3,300,195 564 T 20375370 4584 357 5,219,667 068
Aceynlated denreciation — ¢ost 64571273 (347 539,463} 100.763,187) 192513711 {612,285 304)
Acauisitions 325011 1B EITATE 0.143.729 24‘075"5:‘:150 156576 358
Transfer 9 0 o Q a
Capital Work in Proaress 43315 9201 139,530,078 182,445 008
Dotrociation - Dased on ¢osy {80407.122) (156,776 536} {22.565.350) (2.954.464) 264,725 .533)
Revaduation imoaiiment 34,555,000 [ [ 0 34,555,000
{thar movementsrasiars e} i} [ o
Catrisa volys of disposals o (3. 130,083} 4311 805}
Cost ' o 14265 54T A5 A12.114Y]
Actymutated deoraciation ] 1,165,488
Earndna values st30 June 2013 ZER0.Z54 984 3055 BOE, T35
Cost 2,705 273358 3 561,108,705 018
Accumdated decrecialion — cost [144,978,396) 1606 202 571) 108,548 238
Fedor to Abnangix B for mare detail on croperty. plent & equinmeilt. inciuding the caphal yndar constuction
Assers: Nl the i assels were i Aprog impament
Moweatis assets Dudng the asset verlication movatio 2555 wers igentifed that wese net on the asset regicter. These a5se1s
The Land and Buildng register vias recanciled to tha vauation ol Various were identif|et! aad was
R203 Fropertiss

The oumicipaldy has handed tver R203 Jand to the
oty without compensation. The trnselsr of the
land has nat teken place by yeer end mnd its valug
£n1kd net ha ARGerRined

MUNICIPALITY
PRAPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

{and and Buitdings Finance fezse

R

Carruina values aL30 June 2011 7484 B57.930 K
Cosl. 2472430 1% 744915, 238 k 52 963,545
Accumulalze deoracistion - cost 10418719 (53908391} 15427,03%) 1292593 335
Acauisitions 15,088 08, 5 057 957 135330.650
Comection of i wod 0 o 0 AET16
Canital Werkin Proaress 37,736,300 ] 0 206,773.409
Danraciation -~ based on cast 162.096.153) (09712, 325) (26026097 | (2.634.348) 201.617.626)
Revalaation/ Mosimnan 0 1.202194) 0 12021841
Cther movementshransiars g 0
Denreciation. movementstransfers Q
Carmvina values ak 30 June 2012 2475536 165
Cost 2577 53589
Accumlated dereciafion— cost (51627 .444)
Acquisitions i ) 326011
Transfer 0 0 0
Caital Work in Prgross 43,215 520! 139.530,079| 182,845,998
Deoradalion - based on et (76.982122) 12,954 464}, (261,183 598)
Camvinavaue of disposals g, n {11,441 B5:
Cost (79.457.655)
Avcumulglad deorecialion 7.965 797
Carnina valiss 3t 30 June 2013 38 5,661
Cost 2570604 530 3561108708 © 415537104
Actundated decreciation - cost 505,302 5T1)] 751563 808)

Redar s Appendix B for more detait an property, plant & sauitment. incding the canital under constructiorn.

Assas: Al ha e A pracess was falowed Whereby mpaiment
migekings was hald with the relfevont. managers, After consideration and rewiswit was decided fiol Lo iwpeir the 5sets. The usedul
ife of theri ‘asset condition was poor o very poer the remaining uasfil bfe was adjusted
Ascording te the condition factor,

Moveable aceats: During lhe sel verfication movatls assats were idtentifed thal were not on Me esset rgister. These assels
were [air valwad sing the DRC {Deprecialed Replecement Cost} methad.

The Lend and Building register was recondied to ofl. Warious identified and the register was:
updated accordingly. It vas alse faund thl $ane of fe propartias vaie on s register dd aat comespond wWih the: values on the
valuation rdll and the register was amended accordngly.

BRGUP:  INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2013 a2

[ 3
Carrvinia Valus Ooening Batance 2750567
Cost 34,287 B78|
Accumilated amontisation 112 531 993}
Acauisitions
Cooutal Wark in Proaress
Amorisation - based on cost {3916.5851 (9830 033
Revalustionf Imuaifient
Camvinavalua of dispasals
CogiAccumidatad amorbsabion
Carving Value Closine Balance wesadvz) | 21750887 |
Cosl 282878 X
Accunwiated smonisalion (16,445 S7G) (12531001

Reconcifation of fitanslble Assets - 2013

Canying value Opening Additions ‘Amort safien
Anlanes |

;3 : R R
Compurer softwars 21038365 : 3560324y
Acrial photagraphs 712522 [356.26%

21,750 957 GIE5S)

MUNICIPALITY: INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2013 2012

R R
carrving Vahie Ooening Balance 21750887
Cost 34962878
Aecumulaled amorusaion {12531.891
Acquisitions )
Canital Work in Proaress
Amortisation — based on cost {3916 5851

c:xrwinﬂ Value Clasina Balance 17,824 302
34 £ 34 Fi
Acwm\.llﬂl.ed emanisation {15448 571

Reconcliation of Intanaible Azsets - 2013

Camying value  Dpenlng Addions” Amortiszticn Carmying vaiue
Ralanes Cinsina Ralante
3 3 R
Computer saiwars T 21038365 T {2 560.324) iT478041
Aeried aRotoGeEsh 712522 (356.28M 355,261
Z7,750387 TR S] 17,854,30



8.2

8.3

8.4

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Carrving Vatue Cpening Balance

POLOIWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES YO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 LUNE 2013

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Carrying Value Closing Balance

Cost
Accumulated depresiation

The prior year adjustment relates lo investment properties
that were previously not recognised.

HERITAGE ASSETS

Carrving Value Opening Balance

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Depreciation — based oh cost
Carrving Value Closing Balance

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

The municipafity previously recognised Heritage assets as
part of property, plani and equipment.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Carrving Value Opening Balance

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Changes in fair value adjustments
Depreciation — based on cost
Carrying Value Closing Balance

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

All biclogical assets relate o game.,
The prior year adjustment relates to depreciation that was
incorrectly provided.

During the reporting period, a game auction was held and a
total of 419 animals wera sold. There were 1 390 animais at
year end.

46

GROUP MUNICIPALITY

2013 2012 2013 2012

R R R R
234,602,325 234,502,329 234,607,329 234,602,329
234,602 370 234,602,335 54 607, 559 734,602,329
234,602,359 234,602,329 234,607,329 234,602,329
734,600 335 234,602,329 S54,807, 35 254,602,329
2013 2012 2813 2012

& R R R

11,148,452 11,145,452 14,245,462 11,145,452

11,145,457 11,145,452 11,145 457 11,145,452

11,146,452 11,145,452 i, 145,462 11,145,452

11,145,452 11,145,452 11,145 457 11,145,452
2013 2012 2013 2012

R R R R

4,609,293 14,609,793 14,609,293 14,609,203

14,608,393 14,609,263 14,609,203 14,508,293

{643 544} (643,944)
13,965,348 14,609,293 13,965,348 14,609,203
13,965,345 14,609,283 13,965,346 14,605,263
& - o -
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NOTES 70 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

INVESTMENTS

Long Ferm investments

Standard Bank

Investment in municipat entity (THA}

Held to maturlly investment (COGHSTA PrHA Unspent Granf)

Short Term Fixed Deposits

ABSA Bank

Flrst National Bank
Ned bark
Standard Bank

Total Investments
Council’s valuation of investments

No investments have been written off during the
vear.

The Standard Bank long term investment serves
as quarantee for Eskom bulk purchases

RECEIVABILES

Non-Current Portion of Recelvables
Housing selling scheme loans

Sport loans

Erven leans

Laan to Subsidiary - Polokwane Housing
Assaciation

Current Portion of Receivables

Current portion to current recei

Heusing selling scheme foans
Sport [oans

Erven loans

Polokwane Housing Assosiation

Housing selling scheme louns
These loans have different interest rates and
loans were given over a period of 30 years.

Sport loans

These loans were given to sporiing bodies at an
interast rate of 10% repayable over 10 years.
These loans are repayable in 2016,

Erven loans

These loans were granted to the community for
the purchase of stands. The loans attract
different interest ratas,

Loan to Subsidiary

Aninterest free loan was given o the Polokwane
Housing Assaciation. The loan is repayable in
2017,

POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY

GROUP MUNICIPALITY
2013 2012 613 2012
R R R f
58 959 800 58 599 BOD 58 999 800 58 999 300
- - 8217 389 8217 389
25,012,580 23.765,147 1] 0
84 042 389 82 764 947 67 217 189 67 247 189
50 00C cog 50 000 000 50 000 000 50 CoC 000
40 090 000 40 000 000 40 000 000 40 000 00O
65 000 000 60 000 000 65 000 000 €0 000 DDO
65 000 D00 73 806 D54 65 000 00J 73 803 054
220 000 DOD 223 808 054 220 000 000 223 808 054
304 012 389 306 573 001 287 217 189 29t 025 243
304 012 389 306 573 004 287 217 189 291 025 243
1606 037 2243264 1608 037 2243284
718297 852 638 718 297 862 63§
7 418620 7419480 7418 620 7419480
- - 6662 528 5844 323
9741955 10325 331 16 404 483 16 169 704
7662736 7 502 238 8 595 490 7502 238
40015 132 494 40015 132 494
257 319 0 257 319 0
7365 402 73569744 7 365 402 7369 744
- - 932 754
2478219 2823143 7 808 993 8 667 466
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12.

INVENTORY

Cpening balance of inventotles
Consumables stores - at cost

Cther goods held for resale - at cost
Water

Additions

Cansumatles stores

Cther goeds held for resale

Water

Issued [Expensed)

Consumables stores

Other gocds held for resale

Water

write-down/ {reversal of write-down] to Net
replacement Value and stofen
Consumables storas

Closing balances of inventories
Consumable stores - at cost

Unsold properties held for resale
Water - af cost

Only unsold properiies listed under inventory

which were soid during the year, were expensed,
Consumable stores fair value disclosed is based
on the weighted average calculation method

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES FROM
EXCHANGE TRANSCATIONS

Consumer Deblors
Gale of waler and electricity 15 to 30June

Less Provision for had debts
Less contra debiors suspense account
Plus ouistanding RD cheques

Ageing of consumer debtors
Current (0-30 days)
3150 days
61-90 days
91-120 days
120+ days

Consumer debtors per category
Government
Business
Individuals
Other

The analysis and ageing of consumer debtors
per service could not be provided as the billing
system utilised by the municipality was not set up
t0 generate such repoits.

Reconciliation of bad debt provision

Balance at beginning of year

Contributions ta provision

Bad debts recovered/{written off) against provision
Quer prevision previcus year

Balance at year end

POLOIQWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2033

GROUP MUNICIPALITY
2013 2012 2013 2012
R R R R
50 155 470 53 875 838 60 155 470 53 879 538
45 845 471 50 056 087 46 845 471 30 056 087
13 068 651 3 564 847 13 068 651 3 564 B47
241348 258 504 241 348 258 904
153 394 157 161 485 844 153 384 157 161 489 844
27 906 335 34 696 568 27 906 335 34695 568
0 10768 716 0 10 768 716
125 487 822 118 024 560 125 487 822 116 024 560
(159658 771) (155 214 212y (159668 771} (155 214 212)
(34 264 363) (37 907 184) (34 264 363) (37 907 184)
0 (4 264 512) 0 (1264 912)
{125 394 408) (116 042 116} (125 354 408) (116 042 116}
0 v} 0 0
oll o] [ o} 0]
53 590 856 60 155 470 53 590 856 60 155 470
40 487 443 46 845 471 40 487 443 46 B45 471
13068 651 13 068 654 13 068 651 13 068 851
334 762 241 348 334 762 241 348
585,489,060 413,485,762 576 958 509 408 225 260
27,245,873 26,245,588 27245 873 26 243 588
612,734,933 439,733,350 504 204 332 434 471 843
(226,417,220 (175,296,154} (221 833 013) (168 346 945)
(31,398,377} {2,806,684) (31388 377) (2 806 534)
1,072,808 134,733 1073 809 134 733
355,983,145 261,765,245 352 045 801 263 452 951
153,513,450 119,500,842 152 686 160 118 500 842
29,296,141 26,970,400 28 486 912 26 970 400
19,376,199 16,620,294 18 660 249 16 620 294
18,189.722 12,262,698 17 460,695 12 282 598
305,587,125 262,557,472 386 870 367 254 090 730
" 515,942,636 437,931,706 604 204 382 420 464 964
4,314,815 46,425,701 4314815 46 425 701
170,460,634 137,342,215 170450 634 137 343 215
269,586,678 243,341,578 257 847 424 234 874 936
171,584,509 10,822,112 171 581 509 10822 112
615,942,638 437,932,706 604204 382 429 465 964
175,296,154 145,856 743 168346 946 145 B5G 743
53,486,067 45,141,201 53 486.067 28 191 993
- {15,701.790) 0 {16 701 790)
{2,365,001) - .
226,417,320 175,296,154 22183313 168 346 946
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NGTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EMDED 30 JUME 2013

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other debtors
Deposits

VAT

VAT refundable by SARS
Vat Is payable on cash basis.

GASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The group has the following bank accounts:

Current acceunt {primary bank account)
Standard Bank: Polokwana
Account number: 03017234¢

Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year

Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance st end of year

Housing Aceount
Standard Bank: Polokwane
Aceount numbar: 330635269

Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank staiement balance at end of year

Cash back balance at beginning of year
Cash beok balance at endt of year

Other
Petty cash
PHA Bank balances

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Other assets

‘The munigipality did not have Non-current assets
held for sale in the current and prior financial
years.

POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY

GROUP MUNIGIPALITY
2013 2012 2013 2012

R R R R
19 231731 14 430 406 18 835 468 13 562 382
557 900 £09 300 557 900 509 300
19 789 631 14 939 0§ 19 193 398 14 061 682
21 665 832 65 908 014 21,665 832 65 808 014

50908 014
9 0725633 10 122 Bog 9 072633 10 122 899
49 520 030 9072633 49 520 030 9072633
10 866 084 4 863 581 10 866 064 4 863 581
51 438 356 10 866 064 51438 356 10 866 064
349572 333424 349572 333 424
364.781 349 572 364781 349 572
364 781 333 424 364 781 333 424
364 781 348 572 364 781 349 572
233429 14124 233 429 14134
24770 43 520 24710 43 760
2063 459 2 330 029 - -
54154 796 13 502 619 52 061 276 11 273 530
2013 2012

49
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PROPERTY RATES

Residential
Govermiment
Commercial
Other

VALUATIONS

Residential
Government
Commercial
Muricipat
Other

Valuations on land are performed every four
yoars and the last general valuation come into
effect on 1 July 2010. The basic rate for 2012/13
was .02150tc in the Rand on land, Different
rebates are granted to owners dependent on the
land vaiue of the progerty. An additonal rebate
of 20% was granted to pensioners.

SERVICE CHARGES

Rental of houses and admin charges{PHA)
Sale of efectricity

Sale of water

Refuss removal

Sewerage and sanifalion charges

RENTAL OF FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT

Rental of faclities
Rental of equipment
Total rentals

GOVERNMENT SUESIDIES & GRANTS

Operating Grants

Equitable share

Municipal systems improvement grant

Water services oparating grant

Finance management grant

Muricipal infrastructure grant

Integrated national electrification programme:
grant

Electricily demand side management grant
Expanded public works programme incentive
Grant

Naticnal Lottery

Public transport infrastructure and systems gram

Local organizing commitiee
Infrasiructure skills development grant
Sport & Recreation

Capital Grants

Municipal infrastructure grant

Finance management grant

Integrated naticnal electrification programme
arant

Electricity demand side management grant
Public transport infrastructure and systems grant

Expanded public works programme incentive
arant

Neighbourhood development grant

Pubiic partners

COGHSTA Ga-Rena Phase it

Anglo platinum

Water services refurbishment grant

Total Government Grants & Subsidies

POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUNE 2013

GROUP MUNICIPALITY
2013 2012 2013 2012
R R R R
96,548,725 88,444,975 96 548725 B8 444 976
28,576,139 24,993,029 28 576 139 24993 029
102,224,099 50,876,648 102'224 089 90 876 646
27,371,952 25,108,048 27 371 952 25 108 048
254,720,918 229,422,699 254 720 916 229 422 699
RO00's R00U's RO00's RO00's
21,139,990,000 20,840,135 21 139 980 000 20 840 135
5,480,018,000 3,481,208 3489 818 000 3481208
12,508,821,627 12,394,250 12 508 821 527 12 394 250
2,057,748,342 2.045.913 2057 748 392 2045913
6,348,468,500 6.932,061 6348 468 500 6332941
45,544,846,419 45,094,447 45 544 846 419 45 094 447
10,425,300 10,371,645 - -
605 486 199 556 892 476 605 486 199 556 592 476
164 175 447 137 850 018 164 175 447 137 850 018
51409165 47 227 905 51409 165 47 227 905
46 448 945 39 311 034 48 448 945 39311034
877 945 657 791 653 078 867 519 757 781 281 433
12 467 134 5 509 961 12 467 134 5500 961
1] 0 0 0
12467 134 5 509 961 12 467 134 5 509 961
501 274 579 367 484 803 501274579 367 484 603
388 232 000 350 706 000 388 232.000 350 705 000
800 000 790 000 800 000 790 000
3273000 13111000 3273 000 13 111 000
1 500 000 1250 000 1500 000 1260 000
37 821 957 0 37 821 957
14 626672 0 14 6265 672
7030429 0 7030 429
5 300 000 0 5300000
jd 8 846 856 0 8 B46 856
39 320 324 0 39.320 324 0
0 25 000 000 Q 25 000 000
3000960 0 3000000
371197 1628 803 371 167] 1628 803
187.076 977 216 313 179 187 076 977 213510 998
167 432 655 160 800 542 157 434.655] 160 800 542
0 0 0 0
0 15111934 0 16111 934
3507 129 951 973 3507 129 951 973
1321254 14792 778 1321254 14792776
2464617 1248 481 2464617 1248 481
18 000 000 19 605 292 18 000 000 19 606 292
0 0 0 o
0 0 0 0
0 2802 181 0 2802 181
4349323 0 4349323 -
688 351 556 580 995 809 588 351 556 580 995 801
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POLCKWANE MUNRICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

GOVERNMENT SUBSIDIES & GRANTS (CONTINUED)

Equitable Share

Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts

Conditions met — transferrad t6 revenue

This grant Is ar uncondiionally grant and is
parially uliized for the provision of indigent
supporl through free basic services. Registered
indigents receive a maximum monthly subsidy of
R160.00 (2011 R141.00) which is funded from
this arant.

Resfrueturing Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditions met — transferred to revenue

Unspent amount transferred to liabilities

{sea note 7y

The grant was used for various restruciwing
intiatives.

Finance Management Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditions met — transferred to revenue
Unspent amount transferred to liabilities

{ses note 7)

This grant was used to promote and support
reforms lo icipal fi ial and
the implementaticn of the MFMA, 2003, The
conditions of the grant were met. No funds have
been withheld,

Water Senvices Operating Subsidy Grant
Current year receipts

Conditions met — transferred to revenue

Unspent amount transferred to liabilities

(see note 7)

The grant was utilised to subsidize salaries of
staff and repair and maintenance of water
schemes transferred by DWAF,

Public Ti h fure and Sy
Balance unspani at beginning of year
Current year receipts

Conditions met - transferred to revenue

Paid back to Nationa! Treasury

Unspent amount transferred to liabilities

(see note 7)

The grant was used for public transport and non
motorised transport infrastructure.

Municipal Systems Impi merd Grant
Salance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditions met - transferred to revenue
Unspent amount transferred to liabillties

{see note 7)

The purpose of the grant is for institutional
systems. The qrant was utilised.

GOVERNMENT SUBSIDIES & GRANTS {CONTINUED}

Department of Sport & Recreation

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Currant year receipts

Conditions met — transferred to revenue
Unspent amount transferred to liabilities

(see note 7)

This grant was utilised for sport related operating

expenses. The conditions of the grani were met
and no funds have baen withheld.

GROUP MUNICIPALITY
2013 202 213 2012
R R R R
0 0 0 0
368 232 000 350 705 000 388,232,000 350,705,000
{388 232 90D {350 705 000) (368 232 00O) {350 705 000)
0 [ ) 0
953 927 953 927 953 927 953927
0 o - .
0 0 a 0
953 927 953 927 953 977 953927
] 0 0 o
1500 000 1 250 000 1500 000 1250 000
{1.500.000} {1.250000) {1500 000) (1250 600}
0 0 [ 0
3273000 13 111 000 3273 000 13111 000
(3 273 000) (13 111 000} {3273 006) (13 111 000)
54,276,855 5,250,000 24276 855 5250 000
48,703,000 55,347,000 48703 000 55 347 D00
(60,641,679) {14,792.776) {40 841 579) (14 792 778)
- {11.527,369) .0 (11 527 369)
42,336,377 34,276,855 42338 277 34275 865
0 ¢ 0 0
800 000 790 00C 00 000 #90 000
(800°000) { 790 00T) (800 00D) (790 000)
) 0 [ 0
371187 0 371 187 0
G 2600 000 a 2000 000
(371197 (1 628 803) (371197 (1 628 803)
{0y 371197 {0) 379197
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20.10

20,11

20.12

20.13

2014

Munieipal Infrastructure Gramt

Balancy unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditiens met — transferred to revenue

Paid back to National Treasury

Unspent amount trapsferred to liabilities

{see note 7)

This gramt was used to construet municipal
infrastructure to provide basic services for the
benefit of poor househoids. The conditions of
the grant weie met and no funds have been
withheld,

Lir Provincial

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditions met ~ transferred to revenus
Unspent amount transferred to liabilifies
(see note 7y

The grant was utilised in the planning phase of
the Convention Centre

Waler Services Refurbishment Grant

Balance unspenl at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditions mat - transferred te revenue

Unspent amount transferred to liabilifies

{see note 7)

The grant was utilised to subsidise water
schemes transferred by DWAF.

Limpopo Lotal Government & Housing
Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

LConditions met - transferred to revenue

Unspent amount transferred to liakilities

(see note )

The grant was used to fund the housing
accrediation process

Local Government Transition Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditions met — transfetred to revenue
Unspent amount transferred to liabilities

{see note 7)

The grant was used to fund the local govemiment
{ransitionat phase

Local Economic Development Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditions met - transfened to revenus
Unspent amount transferred to Eabilities

(see note T)

The grant was used to fund local economic
development processes .

Integrated National Electriticat o
Grant

Batance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditiens met - fransfemred to revenue

Paid back to Naficnal Traasury

Unspent amount transterred to Habilities
(seenote 7)

The grant was used to fund projects to address

electrification backlegs in rural areas .
Electricity Demand Side Managemend Grant

Balance ungpent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditions met - transferred to revenue

Paid back to National Treasury

Unspent amount transferred to liabilities

(see note 7)

The grant was used to fund projects in order to
mitigate the risk of load shedding and supply

POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

GROUP MUNICIFALITY
203 2042 2013 202
R R R R
111 398 780 118 520 005 111388 780 118 520 005
221 514 000 182 607 000 221514000 182 607 000
(195 266 611} (180 800 542) {195 256 611) (160 800 562)
0 {28 927 683} 4] (28 927 683)
137 658 169 111 398 780 137 656 189 111,398 780
2948 710 2949 710 2949710 2949 710
0 0 ) 0
1] 0 [s] 4]
2949 M0 2949 710 2949710 2949 710
& 407 000 . 6 407 000 .
. 407 000 0 & 407 000
(4345 323) . {4349.323)
2 057 677 & 407 000 2057677 5,407,000
349572 333 424 349 572 333 424
15 208 6 148 15209 16 148
0 0 0 0
364781 349 572 364 781 349 572
649874 649 874 649874 649 874
o o o 0
o o G 0
549874 545 374 548 874 549 874
54744 54714 54714 54714
0 0 0 0
[+] g o 0
54714 54714 474 54714
0 7992 204 [ 7992 204
16 000 000 22 800 000 16000 000 22 800 000
(14 625672) (16 111 934) (14 625 672) (16 111 934}
0 {14 680 270) 0 {14 630 270)
1374328 0 1374328 -
8 537 558 267 208 £ 537 558 257 208
2000 000 12 000 000 2000000 12 000 000
{10 537 558) { 951 973) {10 537 568) {951 973)
Q (2 787 677). . 0 (2 767 677
0 8 537 558 0 4 537 556
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Expanded Public Works Programme incentive
Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Canditicns met — transferred to revenue

Unspent amount transferred to liabilities
(seenote )

The grant was used o fund projects in order to
maximise job creation and skills devek .

Neighbourhood Development Partnership
Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditions met - ransferred to revenue

Unspent amount transferred to liabilities

(see note 7)

The grant was used to fund projects in order 4o
provide community infrastructure to improve
quality of life of residents in townships .

Skills Development Fund

Ealance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Conditions met —transferad to revenue

Unspent amount transferved to Kabilities

{s8e note 7)

The grant was paid over to Lepelle Motthem
Water Board accordance a 3 pasly agreement
with National Treasury.

GOGHSTA Ga-Rena Phase 2 Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year
Interest capitalised during the year
Conditions met ~ transferred to revenue
Unspent amount transferred to liabilities
(g2@ note 7}

PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS, DONATED &
CONTRIBUTED PROPERTY, PLANT &
EQUIPMENT

National [_ottery

Balante unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts

Conditions met — transfemed {o revenue
Unspent amaunt transferred to liabilities
(see note 7)

The grant was not utilised

Total Unspent grants, Subsidies & Public Contributions
See note 7 for reconciliation

INVESTMENT REVENUE
EXTERNAL INVESTMENTS

Cument aceount
External investments
Investment in PHA

OTHER REVENUE

Building plan fees

Sale of erven

Surcharge excess water consumplion
Ruoyalties Silicon

Refund Seta levy

Retention forfeited

Insurance claims

Admission fees

Gain on change in accounting basis for VAT
Sale of vehicles

Sundry income

Bad dabt reversal

EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS

Employee related cost - Salaries and wages
Employee related cost - Social contibutions
Matar car allowancas

Housing benefits and other allowances
Qvertime banefits

Leave bohus provision

Leave reserve provision

Long term service awards

There were no advances paid ta employees.

POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY

GROUP MUNICIPALITY
2013 2012 2013 2012
R R R R
2464 617 970 098 2464 817 970 098
5300 000 2 743 000 § 300 000 2743000
(7 764 617 {1248 481) {754 610 {1 248 481)
o 2464 G17 [ 2 264 617
0 2605 252 o3 2 505 292
18 000 000 17 000 000 18 000 OO0 17 000 000
{18 000 000) (19 605 292) (18 0OG O0G) {19 605 292)
0 [0 - -
o 0
3 000 000 3 000 000
(3 000 000} {3 000 000}
23 765 157 23,765,147 - -
1,247,442 - - -
25,012,569.48 25 765 147 - -
6153 144 26 296 000 6153 144 26 296 000
o 16 506 181 0 16 506 181
o (36 649 037) 0 (36 649 037)
6 153144 6153 144 6153 144 5 153 144
194,552 601 174 566 943 194 552 601 174 566 948
9858 404 7 902 589 9889 404 7802 582
12309811 15935 628 12 308 826 15533 780
- - 818 205 17724
22198 216 23838 217 23016 630 24 554 D93
4901 517 3084 698 4907 517 3 084 898
1 1264912 [ 1264 912
56 864 235 27 653 D14 56 884 235 27 653 014
2197 121 316 101 2197121 HE1H
3 278 471 2081788 3278 471 2091788
0 § 540 551 0 8 540 551
1743513 3 908 950 1743 513 3 908 950
884 060 748 108 554 080 748 108
0 41 263 400 0 41 263 400
1514 995 o 1314 995
10 364 810 8993979 10 383 355 8 957 803
2,366,001 a
83 713723 95 865 702 81 347 268 95 830 25
257 BE5 619 240 857 428 254 496 324 237 100389
52 492 078 58 790 933 82 131 459 58 648 612
28 857481 25 164 504 28 681 202 25 015 547
9600626 9 457 362 9578 526 9 366 697
34 257 762 50 898 172 34237 762 50 881 279
3125886 487 710 2918370 317217
7 356 495 13 718 862 7 366 435 13 715 862
12 703 524 2 994 417 12703 524 2994 417
416 259 371 403 380 658 412 054 662 399 033 020
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POLOKWANE WEUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2033

GROUP MUNIGIPALITY
20t3 2012 13 2012
R R R R
Municipal Manager
Annual remuneration 988 138 856G 947 988 138 856 647
Allowances 168 000 206 475 168 000 206 475
Council Contributions 249 620 189 324 249 020 189 324
1,405 158 1252 746 1405 1& 1252 746
Chief Financial Officer
Annual yemuneration 796 353 812 400 798 333 812 400
Allowances 36 000 72000 36 000 72 000
Council Contributicns 15 781 187 833 . 16 781 197 933
548 114 1 082 333 848 114 1082 333
The position was vacant for a period of 8 months
Director Planning & Economic Develapment
Annual remuneration 566 §58 503 989 666 859 503 989
Allowances 156 000 161 383 156 000 161 383
Council Contributions 160 321 129 114 160 321 129 114
983180 794 486 983 180 794 486
Director Engineering Services
Annual remuneration 153 428 547 437 193 428 547 437
Allowances 56 000 168 000 56 000 168 000
Council Contributions 48 255 137 897 49 256 137 997
298 683 353 434 294 633 853 434
The position was vacant for a period of § months
EMPLOYEE RELATED GOSTS [CONT}
Director Community Services
Annual remunerzation 589 936 530 285 589 935 539 285
Allowances 215 000 216 000 215 000 216 000
Council Contributions 172 602 160 192 172 602 160 192
978538 915 477 978538 95 477
Director Corporate & Shared Services
Annual remuneration 83z 887 768 677 832 887 768 677
Allowances 144 00C 144 000 144 000 144 000
Council Contributions. 1 668 1857 . 1865, 1 667
978 562 914 234 878 552 914 234
Director Community Development
Annual remuneration 72250 538 229 722501 638 229
Allvwances §4-000 197 951 84.000 197 951
Council Contributions 80542 168 343 90 542 168 343
BY97 044 1004522 B9T7 044 1 004 522
Director Strategic Planning, Monitoting 8
Evaluation
Annual remuneration - 337 690 337 690
Allowances 6% 684 61984
Council Conttibutions 83 259 83 259
482 333 [] 482 933 0
This is a new position, The posision was filled
from 1 January 2013
Director Transportation Services
Annual remuneration 436213 435213
Aliowances 112 000 112000
Council Contributions . 99491 98 491
646 704 0 646 704 0

This is a new position. The posision was filled
from 1 November 2012

Mo performance bonuses wen2 paid out in lerms

af Saction 57 of the Municipal Systems Act.
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REMUNERATION OF COUNCILLORS

Executive Mayor

Speaker

Chief Whip

Mayoral Cormmittee members
Coungillars

In-kind Benefits

The Executive Mayor, Speaker and cerain
Mayoral Committee Members are full time. Each
is provided with an office and sacretarial support
at the cost of Councit.

The. Executive Mayor has use of 2 Council
owned vehicle.

Directors of Municipal Entity {PHA)

JT Maime'a- CEQ

MA Baloyi - Chairperson

TC Maake

TM Makofane

PN Bosch

SP Myeza

C Dibete

CE Molepo

Travel and accommodation for all Directors

FINANCE COST

Lacal Registered Stock loans
Finance leases
Annuity loans

BULK PURCHASES

Electricity
Wailer

GRANT AND SUBSIDIES PAID

Animal care : SPCA
Grant - PHA

GENERAL EXPENSES

Free basic services

Printing and stationery

Rental equipment

Stores and material

Meter reading

Research and development
Training

Postage and telegram

Legal expenses

Subsistence and travelling
Secdrity services

Telephone costs

Garden services

Awareness campaigns
Insirance

Levy Seta training

Street cleaning

Spercial Events

Provision for rehabilitation of landfill sites
Fuel and il

Bank charges

Stock losses

Loss on disposal of assets
Festivals

2010 Stadium Operating expenses
Subscription fecs

Medical aid contributions continued members
Valuation rol!

Waste disposal

Rural House hold sanitation
Rural House hold electrification
IRPTN Project

VAT Conversion

Gther

See Annexure H for more infarmation on Other
expenditure

POLOXWANE MUNICIPALITY

NOTES 70 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

GROUP MUNICIPALITY
2013 2012 2013 2012
R ] R R
821456 775 588 821 459 775 585
644 BTB 613 576 644 878 613 576
606 721 580 891 605 721 580 891
4 288 594 4209 698 4288 594 4299 698
15 567 637 14 944 978 15 561 637 14344 978
21477 288 20 614 731 21 922 288 20 614 731
750,000 . - .
317,114 283,722 - .
156,503 178,301 - .
147,823 176,200 - -
151,060 204,848 - -
127,322 170,741 - -
147,823 11,869 - -
- 621,778 - -
161,279 114,858 - -
1,958,924 1,762,407 Z -
51,659 3977 51,659 3977
53 369 452 419 93 369 452 413
32 160 194 31202 842 29 449 085 28 970 407
32295 223 31 659 238 29 594 115 29 426 803
455 813 130 402771 978 455 813 130 402 771 978
126 487 822 116 024 560 125 487 822 116 024 560
581 300 952 518 796 538 584 300 952 518 796 538
240 000 240 000 240 000 240 000
- - 6 300 000 5 881 695
240 000 240 000 55407000 6121 685
17 926 006 18 741 578 17 925 006, 18 741 678
4180737 4 341 089 4 186 260 4314 991
7374 484 8322 118 7325 932 8 266 307
2607 793 2129 B74 3 607 703 2129 874
3933 803 G 120 087 3933 803 8 120 087
4015 891 4599 027 4015891 4699 027
2489 385 2582 664 2.957 585 2856127
1750 479 2 013 860 1748 389 2010 830
4 437 018 6 397 003 4437 018 5213959
4607 683 5679695 4 562 328 5650 283
30 932 902 27 126 072 30388177 21094 620
7 348 807 5 088 428 7174128 4913 447
5735782 7 125 894 5755782 7118182
153717 95 829 153 717 95 829
9390 154 8647 220 9171898 8451 211
3530841 3478526 3530 641 B 478 526
10858 117 8 542 191 10658 117 8542 191
1209749 9923 506 1209 749 9923 506
335136 304 668 335 135 304 668
7113 245 7921679 7113245 7921679
3 115.391 2 526 089 3038 993 2746 272
o 248 212 0 249212
[} o [} [
1134 528 783 131 1134528 783 131
30 908 850 41 BG2 866 30 908 950 41 B92 866
4011655 3493 475 3982 717 3478 225
15 457 967 24 573 363 16 457 967 24 572 363
495 307 424173 401 827 424173
11 858 468 16 570 618 11 858 468 16 570618
37633 838 [o} 37 633935
23009 135 [} 23009135
1325 254 ¢ 1321264
& E50 440 [ 6650 440
152 784 702 62 188 770 152 183 906 57 854 085
418 612 259 287 993 707 416 742 690 281118 928
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POLOKWANE MUNRICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

GROUP MUNICIPALITY
2013 2012 2013 2012
R R R R
CORRECTION OF ERROR
During the year ended 30 June 2013 and
previous years Property, Plant and Eguipment,
Intangible, Investment Property, Heritage and
Biological Assets were incormestly recognised.
The comparative amount has been restated as fofows:
Non Current Assets
Adfustment on Property, Plant & Equipment 55 932 831 29345 284
Adjustment an ltangibie Assets {7 283 801) 7 283 801y
Adjustment on Investment Property 96 242 662 96 242 862
Adjustment on Heritage Assets 7 806 752 7806 752
Adjustment on Biological Assets 7 304 647 7 304 647
170 003 991 133 415 544

Met efffect on Accumulated Surplus opening balance . Ar0003081 133 415 544
CASH GENERATED FROMAUTILISED IN}
OPERATIONS
Net surplus for the year 48,219,816 172,055,097 44,016,093 175,030,284
Adjustment for;
Current year adjustment {845,284) 2.686.400 5,174,083
Gain / {loss) en fair value adjustment 663,044 643,944
Loss on disposal of assets 11,441,858 - 11,441,858
Correction of prior year error - - -
Depreciation charges 268,686 447 235,552,261 265,100,184 231,254,348
Asset impairment 15,032 1,202,194 - 1,202,184
Contribution fo Provisians 5.635.969 5,635,969 -
Intarest received {20.578,917) (41,516,708) (30,393.937) (42,232,584}
Interest paid 32,295,223 31,659 238 29,594,115 29,426,803
Non-operating income (494.213) (26,076} {(492,807)
Nan-operating expenditure - -
Operating surplus before working capital 336,021,874 401,612,406 325,545,419 399,856,138
changes

fd in inv: 6,264,614 {6.275.632) 6,264.614 (6,275,632
(Increase)/decrease in debtors (94._2'75.4;_29) (55,398,925) (88,593,850) (55,779,352}
(Increase)/decrease in other debtors 5131 718 (8,872,293) (5,131,716) (8,872,383}
Increasef{decrease) in conditional grants 19,985,653 7,734,491 1'9.985,6_53 7,734,491
Increasetf{degraase) in creditors 70,201,179 41,076,073 70,080,418 38,110,462
Increasa/(tdecrease) in provisions 16,703,979 19,006,744 16,635,737 18,841,228
(Increase)/decrease in VAT 44‘242',152 (50,811,747} 44,242,187 60,611,747}
Increase in deferrad income 1,247,442 1,293,150 - -
Working capital " 59237504 (52,048,239} 63,453,036 (586,752,346}
Cash generated by operations 305 259 778 349 564 167 388 993 455 343 102 282
ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF
SEGTION 125 OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE
MANAGEMENT ACT, 2003
Contribution to SALGA
Council membership fees payable 3504 538 2073614 3 604 536 2073614
Amount paid cuirent year (3 504 536} (2073 614) (3 504 536) (2073 614)
Balance unpaid {included in credifors) - - - -
Audit Fees
Current year audit fee 3 506 270 2 557 699 3247043 2302726
Amount paid current year (3 506 270} (2 557 699) (3.247.043) (2 302 725)
Balance unpaid {included in creditors} - - - -
VAT
VAT was payable on the invoice basis for the
previos year. Since July 2012 VAT was payable
on cash basis. VAT input recelvables and VAT
cutput payable are shown in necte 14 All VAT
retumns have been submitted by the due date
throughout the vear.
Pay as You Eam {PAYE)
Currant payroll deductions 53 844 825 52 594 193 52381 996 52 594 193
Amount paid current year (53 844 325} (52 594 193) {53 381 906) (52 594 193}

Balance unpaid
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
HNOTES T¢ THE FINANCIAL STAYEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

GROUP MUNICIPALITY
2013 2012 2913 202
24 R R R
Unempleyment tnsurance Fund {UIF}
Current payroll deductions 4253 818 4011 698 4225 456 4011688
Amount paid cument year (4 253 B18) (4 011 698) (4 225 456) {4 011 B98)
Balance unpaid - - - -
Medical Aid
Current payroll daductions 27991 589 24 510823 27 845 089 24 388 502
Amount paid current year (27 991 589) (24 510 323} (27 845 089) (24 3658 502)
Balance unpaid - - = -
Pension Fund .
Curent payroll deductions 62 381 823 50021625 52 381 828 59 021 625
Amount paid current year {62 381 828) (59 021 625) (62 381 828} (59 021 628)
Balance unpaid - = - -
Councillor's arrear consumer accounts
The following Councillars had afrear accounts Total Outstandinyg less than Qutstanding more
cutstanding for mere than 90 days: 90 days than 90 days
R R R
as at 30 June 2013
Mothiba LM 19725 363 19 362
Mokgokong NJ 54713 289 5174
Lekata MJ 4 506 208 4301
Mashitisho MR 5177 z 886 3291
Thobejane MA 3098 $ 358 1739
Letsozic MW 757 344 413
Mojapelo TSP 481 309 82
Phadu MP 100 i 30
Total Councillor Arrear Gonsumer Accounts 40 318 5924 34 391
During the year the feliowing Ceouncillors had
arrear accounts autstandding for more than 90
days.
Highest
Amount
OQutstanding Ageing Days
as at 30 June 2013 R
Mothiba LM 19 362 a0+
Mokgokong NJ 5174 20+
Lekaota MJ 4301 a0+
Mashitisho MR 3201 90+
Thobejane MA 1732 90+
Letsoate MW 413 90+
Mojapelo TSP 82 90+
Phadi MP 30 90+
COMMITMENTS
Gommitments in respect of capital expenditure:
Approved and contracled for 204 610 277 284 218 000 204 610 277 284 218 00O
The expenditure will be financed from:
- Capital Replacement Reserve 183 426 452 156 677 810 183 426 462 156 677 810
- Govemment and cther Grants 2% 183 815 127 540 180 21183815 127 540 190
204610 277 284 218 000 204 610 277 234 218 000
Operating leases
The Municipality did not have operating leases in
the current or previous year
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 10 565121 24 630 520 10 555 124 24 630 520
. 10555121 24 630 520 10 555121 24 630520

See Annexure G for full detail on Contingent Liabilities

The above legal matters are ongoing and have
7ot yet been finalized.

57



POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

34 UNAUTHORISED, IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS

AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
DISALELOWED
e GROUP_ MUNICIPALITY
2013 o2 2013 2052
34,1 Unauthorized expenditure R R R R
Recongciliation of unauthorized expenditure
Opening balance 442,508,328 272,067,938 412,508,328 272,067,938
Unauthorized expenditure cument year 84,306,966 140,440,390 84,306,966 140,440,390
Approved by Council or condoned - - - -
Transfer to receivables for recovery - - - -
Unauthorized expenditure awaiting autherization 496,815,294 412,508,328 496,815,294 412,508,328
34.2 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Recenciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditurs
Opening balance - 2,652,832 908,100 2,692,832 209,100
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure current year; 692,192 692,192
Interest paid to Lepeile Northern Water 733,561 733,561
Commitment fee paid to DBSA 357,979 357,979
Condoned or written off by Gouncil - - - -
To be recovered ~ contingent asset - :
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting condonement 2,692,832 2,692,832 2,692,832 2,692,832
34.3 Irregular expenditure
Reconciliation of imegular expenditure
Cpening balance 222,718,967 67,786,508 222,718,967 67,786,306
Non compliance with SCM policy:cument year X
7,044 661 137,016,697 7,044,661 137,019,697

Qverlime paid in contravention of the Basic

Conditions of Employmaent 17,912,965 17,912,965
Coridonad or writken off by Councit - - - -
Transfer to receivables for recovery — not condoned

Iregular expenditure awatting condonement 229,763,628 222,718,967 229,763,628 222,718,967

35 PROVISIONS

35.1 Provision for rehabilitation of landfifl sites

Carrying ameunt at beginning of year 3,351,351 3,048,683 3,351,351 3,048,833
Addiitions during the year 335,135 304,668 335,135 304,668
Reductions during the year 7] i 0 ¢
Carrying ameunt at end of yaar 3,686,486 3,351,351 3,686,485 3,351,351

The Weltevreden Landfill Site is a parmitted facility in tems of Sectioh 20 of the
Envirenmental Conservation Act {Act 73 of 1989) and is located on portien4 of the fam
Weltevreden 746 LS - District Polokwane. The expected life span of the site-is 4 further
11 years
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POLOKWANE MUNICEPALITY
NOYES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

35,2 Post-Employment Health Care Benefits

35.3

Fair value of plan assats - .

Accruad labiity 160,387,000 154,437,733 180,387,000 154,437,733
Unfunded Accrued Liability 150,387,000 154,437,733 160,387,000 154,437,733
Net Liabillty in Salance Shaet 160,387,000 154,437,733 160,387,000 154,437,733
Reconciling and profecting the unfunded accrued liability

Unfunded Accrued Liability

QOpening batance 154,437,733 138,685,785 154,437,733 136,686,785
Current-service cost 8,127,359 7,444,274 8,127,353 7,441,274
Interest cost 14,238,159 12,702,854 14,239,159 12,702,854
Actuarial {GainyLass {11,662,901) - {11,662,901) -
Actuat emploeyer benefit payments (4,754,350) (4,392,180) {4,754,350) (4,352,180)
Closing Balance 150,387,000 154,437,733 160,387,000 154,437,733
Net liabifity to reflect in the balance sheet

Opening balance 154,437,733 138,685,785 154,437,733 138,685,785
Current-service cost 8,127,359 7,441,274 8,127,388 7,441,274
Intarest 14,239,159 12,702,854 14,239,158 12,702,854
Actuarial (Gain)/less recognised (11,882,901} - (11,662,901) -
Net Pericdic Cost Recognised in P&L 165,141,350 458,829,913 165,141,350 158,829,913
Actual amployer benefits payments (4,754,350} (¢,392,180) {4,754, 350) (4,382,180)
Closihg Balance 160,387,000 154,437,733 160,387,000 154,437,733
The following assumptions has been used for current and prior year

Discount rate 7.89% 9.14% 7.89% 9.14%
Haaith care costinfiation rate 7.14% 9.65% 7.14% 9.85%
l.eng Service Awards

Accrued liability ) 24,897,000 13,154,854 24,897,000 13,154,854
Unfunded Accrued Liability . 24,897,000 13,154,854 24,847,000 13,154,854
Net Liabilty'in Balance Sheet . 24,897,000 13,154,854 24,847,000 13,154,854

Reconciling and projecting the unfunded accrued llabitity
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POLOKWANE MURNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Unfunded Accrued Liability

Opening balance 13,154,854 10,891,471 13,154,854 10,891,471
Current-sarvice cost 1,136.579 1,880,190 1,136,879 1,880,190
Interest cost 2,151,278 548,710 2,151,278 648,710
Actuarial {Gain)fiLoss 6,934,978 - 8,934,978 -
Aciual employer benefit payments {480,689) (365,817 (480.689) {365,517)
Closing Batance 24,897,000 13,134,854 24,897,000 13,154,854
Net liabifity to reflect in the balance sheet
Opening balance 13,154,854 10891471 13,154,854 10,891,471
Current-service cost 1,136,579 1,980,190 1,136,679 1,980,190
Interest cost 2,151,278 848,710 2,161,278 548,710
Actuarial (Gain}ioss recognised 8,934,978 - 8,934,878 -
Net Periodic Cost Recogrisod 25,377,689 13,520,371 25,377,689 13,520,371
Actual employer benefits payments {480,688) {385,617) {480,689} {365,517)
Closing Balance 24,897,000 13,154,854 24,897,000 13,154,854
Employees qualify for the following long service awards:
- Aftar 10 years of continuous service an amourt of R638.28 (adjusted annually) per sach year of service.
- After 20 years of continuous service a watch 1o the value of R5 774 (adjusted annually)
-Additionat 10,20 and 30 leave days for 10,15 and each 5 vears aftar 15 years of setvice respectively

35.4 Ex-gratia benefits
Fair value of plan assets - - - -
Accrued liabiity 5,417,000 6,807,811 5,417,000 6,807,811
Unfunded Accrued Liability 5,417,000 6,807,811 5,417,000 6,807,811
Net Liability in Balance Sheet 5,417,000 6,807,811 5,417,000 6,807,811
Reconciling and projecting the unfunded accrued Fability
Unfunded Accrued Liability
Opening balance 6,807,811 5,166,488 8,807,811 6,186,488
Current-service cost 532,000 467,382 532,000 467,382
Interest cost 510,000 478,085 510,000 478,055
Actuarial {GainylLoss {2,031,882) - (2,031,882} "
Actual employer benefit payments (400,929} {324,112) . (400,929) (324,112)
Closing Balance 5417000 6,807,811 5,417,000 6,807,811

Net liabifity to reflect in the balance sheet
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Opening balance

Current-service cost

Intarest

Actuarial {Gain)/loss recognised

Net Periodic Cost Recognised
Expected emplover benefits payments
Closing Balance

Total Provisions
RISK MANAGEMENT

Maximum credit risk exposure

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits,
cash equivalents ang trade debtors. The
municipality only deposits cash with major
banks with high quality credit standing and
limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Trade receivables comprise a widespread
cusiomer base. Management evaluates credit
risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis.
If customers are independently rated, these

ratings are used.

Finzncial assets exposed 10 credit risk at vear

end wers as follows:

Invesiment in Banks
Trade and other receivables

These balances represent the maximum

exposure to credit risk.

Liguidity risk

The municipality's risk to liquidity is a result of

the funds available to cover future

commitments. The municipality manages
liquidity risk through an ongaing review of
future commitments and credit fadilities.

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and

adequate utilised borrowing facilities are

monitored.

The table below analyses the municipality's
financial kabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining peried at
the Staterrient of Finandizl Positien ts the
contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscourted cash flows.

Borrowings
Trade and other payables

POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

6,807,811 6,186,456 6,807,811 6,185,486
532,000 467,262 32,000 467,382
510,000 478,055 510,000 478,055

(2,021,882) - (2,031,882) -
5,817,029 7,131,923 5,817,920 7,131,923
(400,929) (324.112) (400,929) (324.112)
5,417,000 6,807,811 5,417,000 6,807,511
104,387,486 177,751,749 194,387,486 177,751,749

220,000,000 223,808,054 220,600,000 223,808,054

352,046,801 263,452 951 352,048,801 263,452 951

572,046,801 487,261,005 572,048,801 487,261,005

262,202,961 298 587,916 262,202,061 298,587,916

288,469,461 218,419,048 288,460,461 218,418,045

560,672,421 517,006,951 550,672,421 517,006,961
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RATIFICATION OF DEVIATIONS FROM
BREACHES IN PROCUREMENT
37 PROCESSES

Prescribed procurement processes wera not
tallowed but was approved by the Municipal
Managar in terms of dalegated powers and in
accorcance with Supply Chain Management
Regulations and Policy. Vakd reasons for
deviations were recorded in all instances.

38 FINANCE LEASE COMMITMENTS

POLOKWANE BAURICIPALETY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMIENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

The: municipality future lease commitments on printing equipment and their present values

are as follows:

213

Current

Due within one year

Due between one and five years

2012
Due within one year
Due between one and five years

2,170,915 10,497,195 2,170,915 10,487,195
Minirnum lease
payments Finance costs Fresent value Finance costs Fresent value
4,422,657 1,923,988 2498679 -
26,454,229 5185357 21,268 872 - -
30,876,896 7,109,345 23,767,551 - -
2,690,373 93,389 2,587,004 93,369 (83,389)
2,690,373 93,369 2,597,004 93,369 (93,369}

The impficit interest rale embedded on a lease is 8.5%. The iease expired in February 2013 (itec Meso)

39 RELATED PARTIES

Relationships
Members of key management

Other related party relationships

Related party transactions
Compensaticn o councillors

Post employment benefit plan for employees of
municipality and/or other related parties

No other payments are
paid outside: contractual
employment payments
from employment. Refer
te note 24 for
remuneration.

Pololwane Housing Assosiation. Refer fo note
10

Payments to councillors
are for allowances as
gazeltad, No other
payments are madé to
councillors.Refer to note
25 for remuineration of
councillers.

Referto noke 35.2
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POLGKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Related party balances

Loan accounts - Owed by related parties
Thabatshweu Housing Association - - 14,879,917 14,081,713

Debtors atcounts for rates - Owed by

related parties
Thabatshweu Housing Association - - 3,721,134 3,208,471

40 DISTRIBUTION LOSSES

The Municipality has incurred the following distibution losses as result of supply of
electricity and water

Water distribution Iossas In KL 3032 740 (14.22%) 7982232 (21.21%} 3032740 (14.22%) 7982232 (21.21%)

Electricity distribution losses kwh 66 278 896 (8.59%) 73 B22 481 (9.79%) 46 276 886 (8.50%) 73 B22 461 (9.79%)

Monetary vatue

Water distribution losses R 21,070,825 R 33,844,650 R 21,070,625 R 33,844,650

Electricity distribution losses R 39,172,232 R 51,601,834 R 38,172,232 R 51901834
R 60,242,857 R 55,746,484 R 60,242,857 R 85,746,484

41 COMPARISON WITH THE BUDGET

The comparison of the Municipality's actuar
financial parfermance with that budgeted is set
outin Annexure G

42 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

There were no change In accounting policy
that required changes to the prior year
reporting amounts.

43 GAINJ{LOSS) ON SALE/FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS

Property, plant and equiprment (11,441,858). {11,441,858)

Infangible assets

Irvestment property

Biclogical assets

Other financial assets

Yotal Gain f {Loss) on Sale of Assets {11,441,858) - {11,441,858)° -

The assets disposals relate to vehicles that
were sold to Fleet Africa as pant of the fieet
management agreement. Various road surface
layers were de-recognised as they were
replaced with new surface layers.

44 FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENT

Biological assets

Fair value adjustment (643,944} - (1,262,309) -
{643,944} - {1,252,309 . -

Biological assets wers fair valued at year end.

45 IMPAIRMENT LOSS

Property, plant and equipment

impairment loss - 1,202,194 - 1,202,194
Total Impainment loss . - 1,202,194 A 1,202,194

meetings was held with the relevant managers.
After consideration and raview it was decided
not {o impair the assats for the year under
review.
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46 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Defined contribution and benefit plan

The Councit provides retirement benefits to
employees by contributing to pension and
provident Funds Membkearship of either pension
or provident fund is compulsory for all
permanent emplovees,

The municipality and its employess contribute
to 7 different Pension Funds, of which 3 [The
Municipal Employees Pensian Fund, Municipal
Gratuity Fund and Samwu Natonal Provident
Fund } cater for the majority of the staff. The
Joint Munigipal Pensicn Fund, Municipal
Employees Pension Fund, Municipal Gratuity
Fund ,Samwu Naticnal Pravident Fund and
National Fund for Municipal Workers are
defined benefit funds.

The employees of the Council as well as the
Council as empiloyer, contribute to
municipal pension, retirement and various
provident

funds as listed betow;

2013 2012 2013 2012
The Joint Municipal Pension Fund 2,385,974 2,649,786 2,385,074 2,649,786
Municipal Councillors Pensicn Fund 2,567,341 2,967,341
Government Empioyees Pension Fund 2,183,748 2,183,748
Municipal Employees Pension Fund 27,344,353 25,805,272 27,344,353 25,808,272
Municipal Employees Gratuity Fund 15,356,798 12,491,302 13,356,708 12,491,302
Samwu National Pravident Fund 8,'.1’3_5,383_ 8,712,658 8,785,383 8,712,658
National Fund For Municipal Workers 5:358,233 6,114,006 5,355,233 5,114,006

62,381,828 54,773,024 62,381,828 54,773,024

Post-Retirement medical aid contributions

The municipality operates on 7 accredited
medical aid schemes, namely Bonitas,
Hosmed, Key-Health, LA Health and
Samwumed, Resolution Heaith, and
Govermnment Emplyees Medical Scheme.
Pensicners may continue on the option they
belonged to on the davy of their refirement.

The last post-employment health care banefits
acfuarial valuation in terms of LAS18 was done
oy ZAQ Consultants and Actuaries for ihe
period ending 30 June 2073,

According to the last valuation did, the accrued
liability ameunt to R 160 387 000 as at 30 June
2013,



A reconciliation of Polokwane accrued Hability
for the year ending 30 June 2013 is sel out
below;

Year ended 3¢ June 2013

Cpening balance

Service cost

Interest cost

Actual employer henefits paymeants
Expected closing balance
Actuarial {gain/loss -

Actual elosing balance

The amounts recog d in the stats t of
financial pasition are as follows:

Carrying value

Present value of the defined benefit obligation-
Wholly unfunded

Movements for the year

Opening balance
Contributions - Current year

Closing balance
Key assumptions used

The projected unit credit method is used as the
standard valuation methodology for the
valuation done during the 2012/2013 financial
petiod. Plan assets were valued at current
market value as required by IAS19.

Assumptions used on last valuation on 30 June 2013,

Disceunt rates used
Medical inflation - lower than discount rate
Net effective discount rate

Other assumptions; Post retirement mortality
PA (80-1) Retirement age 63 years

Sensitivity analysis

Tha impact of a 1% change in the medical aid
inflation rate is reflected in the table
undemeath,

Sensitivity to medical inflation

Base
1%
1%

The employees of the Council as well as the
Counail as employer, confribute to municipal
medical aids as listed below

Bonitas
Hosmed

Key Health

LA Hezlth

Samwumed

Resolution Health
Govemment Employees Medical Scheme
Total

POLOKWANE MUNICIPAUTY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

2013 2012 2013 2012
154,437,733 138,685,875 154,437,733 138,685,875
8,127,359 7,441,274 8,127,359 7,441,274
14,239,159 12,702,854 14,239,159 12,702,854
-4,754,350 -4,392,179 -4,754,350 -4,392,179
172,044,901 154,437,733 172,049,901 154,437,733
11,862,901 0 -11,862,901 4
0 e
160,387,000 154,437,733 160,357,000 154,437,733
(160,3867,000) (154,437,733) {160,387,000) (154,437,733)
(154,437,733) (136,685,765) {154,437,733) (138,885,785)
(5,848,267) {15,751,948) (5,949,267) (15,751,948)
(160,387,000) (154,437,733 (160,387,000} (154,437,733)
7.89% 9.22% 7.89% 8.22%
714% 7.25% 7.14% 7.25%
0.70% 1.83% 0.70% 1.83%
160,387,000 125,178,769 160,387,000 125,178,769
142,608,000 109,804,000 142,608,000 109,804,000
177,857,000 143,885,000 177,867,000 143,885 000
480,852,000 378,867,769 480,852,000 378,867,769
2013 2012 2013 2012
8,136,892 7,455,198 8,136,802 7,455,198
4,227,514 3,786,138 4,227,511 3,789,138
9,646,658 9,370,597 9,646,556 9,370,897
2,799,787 2,218,060 2,799,787 2,218,060
2,277,079 1,635,109 2,277,079 1,535,109
20,213 20,213
737,050 737,050
_27:845 089 24,388 502 27,845,089 24,368,502
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POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

47 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Nene to report

45 GOING CONCERN

in terms of the accounting standard GRAP 1 paragraphs 27 to 30 the annual financial
statements are prepared on a going concem kasis. The assumption is based on the fact that
the municipality may invoke its power to levy additional rates or taxes to enable the
municipality to be considered as a going concern even though the municipality will be
operationat for éxtended periods with negative net assets.
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APPENDIX D

DETAILED SEGMENTAL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 39 JUNE 2013

2012 2012 2012 2043 2013 2012
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
Income Expenditure Surplus? Income Expenditure Surplus/
[Deficit) (Deficit)
R R R R R R
# 164,412,970 (154,412,970} Executive & Council - 190,115,878 190,115,878}
- 107,891,528 (107,891,528) Council general expenses - 117,129,068 {117,129,066)
- 2,556,557 (2,556,557) Municipal Manager - 4,341,065 (4,341,065}
- 44,854,420 (44,854 420) Facifity management “ 60,664,047 (60,664,047}
- 9,110,465 (9,110.465) Secretariat & Records - 7,981,701 (7,881,701}
943,748,321 248,105,151 695,643,169 Finance & Admin 953,149,120 395,411,846 587,717,274
Finance - -
620,325,404 620,325,404 Intergovernmental transfers 688,351,566/ - 685,351,556
- 2,675,745 (2,675,745) MankwengiSebayeng - 2.580,679 {2,580,679)
90,991,120 72,177,293 18,813,827 Financial services 34,572,464 121,715,746 {87,143,282)
279,422 699 1,954,633 227,468,066 Assassment rates 254,720,916 9.817.171 244 903,744
Human Resources -
- 1,183,249 (1,183,249) oaw -| 1,286,938 {1,286,938)
- 23,613,814 (23,613,614) Personnel - 30,682,622 {30,682,622)
2,091,788 8,501,233; {6,409,448) Training 3,278,471 13,916,125 {10,637 654)
3,978,837 {3,978,837) Labour relations - 4,930,744 (4,930,744}
44,686 982,679 (937,993) QOccupational Health - 7,409,568 (7,409,568)
- 17,897,052 (17,897,052) T 66 38,265,966 (38,265,900)
Property Services -
- 10,377,906 {10,377,805) Administration - 5,261,275 (5,261,275)
- 9,032,760 (9,032,760) Civic Centre - 16,321,153 (16,321,153)
Other Admin -
- 17,407,269 (17,407 299) Com & public participation 12,987,428 (12,887 438)
- 2,450,912 (2,450912) Security & risk management - 3,254,914 (3,254,914)
- 4,881,424 (4,881,424} Project Management - 3,360,321 (3,360,321)
3,500,736 {3,500,736) Intemal audi - 4,134,782 (4,134,782)
3,231,084 (3,231,051) Technicat depot - E
- 7,028,290 (7,028,290) Transport workshop - 43,083,111 (43,063,111)
40,803,131 (40,803, 131) Community security - 47,163,135 {47,163,135)
7,136,082 (7.136,982) Legal Services B 8,171,626 (8,171 625)
872,623 9,290,124 (8,417,501) Procurement 2,275 648 20,108,532 (17,882,884)
10,560,477 31,860,670 {21,310,193)  Planning & Development 10,804,573 32,153,133 {21,348,560)
7,074,336 3,651,803 3,422,533 +and use management 4,556,075 5,865,606 {1,309,531)
248,319 9,318,099 (9,070,680)|  Spatial Planring 991,603 7,950,467 (6,958 854
3,227,821 4,866,336 (1,638,514) Building inspections 5,256 895 4,283,593 963,302
- 2,349,329 (2,349,329) Local economic development - 2,417,014 (2,417 014}
2,513,858 (2.513,858) Community development - 1,542,368 {1,542 368)
682,523 (6B2,523) Investment premotion - §23,022 {823,022}
4,002,914, {4,002,914){  Economic planning - 2,906,878 (2,906 878!
4,474,909 (4474009 1DP - 6,354,186 (6,354,186)
- 5,369,832 5,369,832} Health - 3,320,984 (5,329,984)
| | 2,629,321 | | (2,639321)]  Clinics | l 1,153‘3ﬁ| | (1,158,379
2,740,511 (2,740,511) Health inspection | 4,171,608 (4,171.605)
3,262,753 53,236,890 {49,974131)  © ity Services 4,481,239 36,209,862 (31,748,623)
322,054 14,551,793 {14,228 539) Libraries 204 763 11,715,574 (11,420.811)
Museums -
1,511,542 (1,511,542} Art Museum -| 878,080 (878,090)
104,070 8,800,847 (8,786,747} Museum 84,745 5,501,036 {5,416,291)
304,270 1,855,534 (1,551,265) Community centres 526,187 1,566,869, (1,040,682)
600,482 5,354,797 {4,754 345) Cemeteries 848,821 4,884,689 {4,235,869)
Other Community -
1,789,964 16,829,438 (15,039,444) Game Reserve 2,884,716 6,477,097 {3,502,381)
141,03 1,224,008 {1.082,995) Showgrounds 22,008 3,200,028 {3,178,020)
3,018,960 {3,018,560) Cultural desk - 1,086,479 {1,986,479)
29,743 6,947,382 {6,917,639) Housing 12,071 5,230,689 {5,218,618)
6,945,209 (6,245,209) Administration - 5,230,689 {5,230,689)
26,322 1,836 24456 Assisted schemes 10,361 - 10,361
3,421 338 3,083 Letting schemes 1,710 - 1,710]
19,410,436 74,769,052 [55,358,616) Public Safety 21,872,689 73,260,262 {65%,387,574)
4,993,901 35,446,193 (30,448,292) Traffic 3,045,851 36,297,499 {33,250,647)
157,886 24,443,895 (24,286,009) Fire fighting 259,430 22,475,966 {22,216,535)
~| 4,041,136 (4.04%,136) Disaster management - 4,405,212 {4,405,812)
14241 ,32"1 5,518,557 8,723,267 Licensing 18,559,775 6,285,999 12,263,776,
10,824 5,319,271 (5,308,447) Municipal contre! centre 5,632 3,784,687 {3,778,355)
1,662,959 135,607,918 (133,944,955) Parks & Recreation 10,289,977 125,340,957 {115,070,981)
5,273 2,359,992 (2353,719)]  Nursery 17,191 1,557,254 {1,540,082)
111,163 32,682,519: {32,571,357) Parks 142,725 35,586,332 {35,443,607)
1,267,552 96,381,895 {§5,004,343)]  Sport & recreation 0,063,318 83,872,605 {73,509 5889)
257,972 4,183,512 (3,925,540) Swimming pools 146,745 4,324 467 {4,177,722)
- 555,074 (555,074} Enviror Protection - 567,086 {567,086)
| 555,074] [ (555,074)]  Air poliuticn ] 67,008 | {567,086)]
47,830,203 70,247,463 {22,417,260) Waste } 52,673,880 51,933,708 740,181
47,830,203| | 58,4774923] [ (10,647.720)]  Refuse Removal 52573,339' | 40,843,232| | 11.830,5577|
11,769,540 (11,769,540) Street & side walking cleaning - 11,090,476 {11,090,476)
35,313,057 51,431,343 [12,120,287) Waste water management 46,448,945 79,513,744 {33,064,739)
70,574 30,027,289 (29,956,714)]  Sewer purification 9,013] 63,756,091 (63.747,078)
39,240,482 11,862,726 27,377,757 Sewer reticufation 46,439,932| 7,704,507 38,735,425
6,658,470 (6.658470)|  Storm water - 5,732,083 (6.732,063)
2,882,859 (2,882 859} Public foilets - 1,321,083 (1,321,083}
7,609,326 95,913,169 {88,303,833) Road Transport 3,816,452 9,242,223 87,425,769}
l 94,132.31?] | (94,132,317}  Roads & streets 47,75s| I 59,354,257| | (89,336,501}
7,609,326 1,780,842 5,828 484 Vehicle licensing & testing 3,768,697 1,857,966 1,910,732
165,503,351 197,887,790 {32,384,438} Water distribution 221,059,719 266,354,592 {45,324,873)
165,503,351 52,790,759 112,712,552 ‘Water Distribution 221,059,718, 116,962,779 105,096,940
129,946,738 (120,946,738)]  Water provision R 138,816,148 (138,816,149
15,150,253 (15,150,253} ‘Water Purification - 11,605,664 {11,605 664}
559,546,074 487,047,300 72,499,574  Electricity 70 605,542,668 563,341,029 42,701,639




APPENDIX D

DETAILED SEGMENTAL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

2012 2012 2012 2013 2013 2013
Actuai Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
income Expenditure Surplus/ Income Expenditure Surplus/
{Deficit) {Deficit)
R R R R R R
- Workshep . -
559,545,674 482,244,633 77,302,241 Distribution 605,542,668 560,606,126 45,036,542
4,802,667 (4,802,867) Straet Lighting = 2,834,903 [2,834,903)
24,000 67,211 {43,211) Other 24,000 4,257 [40,257)
24.000] | 67.211] (43,211  Airport 24,000| 4,257 | (40,257}
1,796,459,499 1,623,459,205 175,030,294 Total 1,960,135, 343 1,916,119,251 44,616,091
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ANNEXURE H
POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
LIST Of OTHER EXPENDITURE

OTHER EXPENDITURE
2013 2012

8090 RURAL HOUSEHOLD SANITATION 37,633,935 0
8118 STADIUM MANAGEMENT 30,908,950 41,892,866
7413 GUARD SERVICES : RENTAL 30,388,177 21,826,017
8172 FINANCE COST (DEBOTRS DISCOUNTING) 31,398,377

8191 VAT CONVERSICN 25,491,916

8092 RURAL HOUSEHOLD ELECTRIFICATION 23,009,135 0
7956 FLEET MANAGEMENT 20,526,973 0
7901 CONTRIBUTION: MEDICAL AID - CONTINUED 15,457,967 24,573,363
7601 GRANTS - ASSESSMENT RATES 9,415,345 2,171,855
7435 WASTE DISPOSAL - RECYCLING 9,309,875 14,885,247
7899 CONSULTATION FEES 8,023,944 1,425,242
7983 INSURANCE - OTHER 7,690,013 7,024,401
2802 FREE BASIC SERVICES 7,624,885 9,966,852
8073 RENTAL - EQUIPMENT 7,325,932 8,256,307
7421 STREET GLEANING 7,294,400 5,679,926
7959 FUEL AND OIL 7,113,245 7921679
2804 ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTICN - FREE BASIC 7,075,829 5,567,531
8045 PROTECTIVE CLOTHING 6,410,042 1,737,926
7412 GARDEN SERVICES 5,735,782 7,118,182
8179 WARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS 5,108,873 3,260,824
7410 COMMISSION FEES 5,018,837 1,823,511
7917 DEPARTMENTAL CHARGES : WATER 4,987,197 4,680,846
8143 TELEPHONE 4,842 503 4,638,233
8133 SUBSISTANCE AND TRAVELLING 4,562,328 5,561,976
7991 LEGAL EXPENSES 4,437,018 6,213,958
8037 PRINTING & STATIONERY 4,166,260 4,425,100
7417 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 4,015,891 4,699,027
8131 SUBSCRIPTION FEES 3,992,717 3,478,235
7415 METER READING SERVICES 3,933,803 6,120,087
7913 DEPARTMENTAL CHARGES : ELECTRICITY 3,675,651 4,253,210
7983 LEVY - SETA TRAINING 3,530,641 3478526
7849 AUDIT FEES 3,247,043 2,302,725
2812 FREE BASIC SERVICES 3,224,293 3,207,196
7855 BANK CHARGES 3,038,993 2,746,322
8160 TRAINING INFRASTUCTURE SKILLS DEVELOF 3,000,000 0
8157 TRAINING 2,927,575 2,556,127
7423 STREET SWEEPING 2,825,145 2,862,265
8129 STORES AND MATERIAL 2,607,793 2,129,874
8067 REFUSE REMOVAL SERVICES 2,548,693 1,685,370
7877 CELL PHONES 2,331,623 275,213
7919 DISCIPLINARY COMMITTEE 2,308,408 1,688,048
7407 AUDIT FEES - OUTSOURCED 2,075,016 1,616,673
8155 TOWN PLANNING 1,759,509 29,823
8033 POSTAGE AND TELEGRAMS 1,748,389 2,010,830
8031 POINT DUTY 1,648,589 1,421,943
8117 SPORT & RECREATION PROGRAMMES 1,614,277 1,443,541
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ANNEXURE H

POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY
7987 INSURANCE - WORKMAN'S COMPEIEATIERR EXPENDITURS, g5

8158 TRAINING FMG
8147 ADMINISTRATION COSTS{IRTPN}
8107 SPECIAL EVENTS

7915 DEPARTMENTAL CHARGES : SEWER & SANIT

3043 PROMOTIONS

8109 SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS
8185 WATER RESEARCH LEVY

7879 CHARGES - ELECTRICITY

7945 FESTIVALS

7883 CHEMICALS

8059 RECRUITING EXPENSES

7405 ASSET VERIFICATION

7411 FEES - FASYPAY SYSTEM

7891 CLEAN UP ACTION

7903 CORPORATE PUBLICITY

8003 LICENCES - VEHICLES

7895 COMMUNITY PROGRAMS

7408 CLEANSING SERVICES

7965 GRAVE DIGGING

8013 MARKETING

7907 DATA - COMMUNICATION

7845 AUDIT COMMITTEE FEES

7833 ADVERTISEMENTS

7425 SWIMMING SUPERVISION

8081 RENTAL - OFFICES/BUILDINGS (EXTERNAL)
7873 CASH HANDLING

7977 IDP AND HEARINGS

7931 EMERGENCY DISASTER RELIEF
7431 VALUATIONS - INTERIM

8510 REHABILITATION OF LANDFILL SITES
8063 REFRESHMENTS - MEETINGS
8087 ROAD SHOWS : MAYOR

8019 MAYORS BOSBERAAD

8095 SECURITY SERVICES

8052 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

7867 BURSARY : STAFF

8105 SMME MANAGEMENT

7851 AWARENESS CAMPAIGNS

8071 RENTAL - ALARMS

7865 BOOKS & PERIODICALS

8187 WEED CONTROL

7937 ENTRANCE CONTROL (ACCESS CONTROL?)
8061 REFRESHMENTS

8113 SPONSORSHIP SPCRTING NODES
7925 EAP PROGRAMME

7995 LIBRARY PROGRAMS

8171 TREES

8039 PROGRAMMING

7869 BURSARY : STUDENT
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1,395,527
1,321,254
1,208,749
1,199,515
1,185,541
1,169,620
1,155,480
1,150,338
1,134,528
1,123,771
1,065,031
1,016,844
994,074
990,391
836,765
833,937
800,159
798,013
676,298
647,370
603,390
575,333
548,245
511,465
502,467
474,199
469,123
441,670
401,827
335,135
324,656
265,287
236,088
224268
211,729
171,088
166,088
153,717
148,375
70,381
131,872
102,107
97.674
84,711
79,413
67,203
66,674
56,656
53,820

1,426,810
0

0
9,923,506
956,927
2,036,595
19,200
992,899
1,372,066
783,131
1,179,872
713,371
1,458,344
797,208
1,282,299
1,487,740
834,880
191,660
2,345,055
787,286
564,762
467,898
538,075
729,504
339,339
567,038
428,523
1,407,165
453,779
424,173
304,668
347,749
166,704
793,806
132,024

0

108,367
108,373
95,829
131,573
230,074
198,893
12,745
158,614
14,547
38,000
84,061
26,094
345,321
28,565
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7935 ENTERTAINMENT EXPENSES
7406 CLEANING SERVICES
8085 RISK MANAGEMENT
8086 RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
7939 EXHIBITIONS
8159 TRAINING ~ WARD COMMITEES
8189 WORKSHOPS
8051 PUBLICITY
7999 LICENCES - RADIO
8023 MEDICAL EXAMINATIONS OHS
7943 FEEDING OF ANIMALS
8027 PAUPER BURIALS
7909 DECORATION - QFFICIAL FUNCTIONS
7905 CYLINDERS FIRE FIGHTING
8173 VETERINARY SERVICES
7933 ENERGY FORUM
7897 CONFERENCES/CONGRESS
7881 CHARGES : WATER
8065 REFUSE BINS
7839 AMMUNITION
8007 LOST BOOKS
7923 DRIVING/DIVING PERMITS
8062 REMOVAL COSTS
8149 TITLE DEEDS CENTRAL
8055 RATIONS
7971 HIV/AIDS PREVENTION
7973 HOLIDAY PROGRAMS
8083 RETEST DRIVERS LICENCE
8097 SEEDS.PLANTS.SHRUBS
7841 ANIMALS
8089 SAMPLE TESTS
7921 DISCRETIONARY VOTE - EXECUTIVE MAYCOR
8001 LICENCES - SAMRO
8025 OFF LOAD OF DRYINGBEDS
8041 PROGRAMS - CLINIC
8075 RENTAL - LAND
8101 SHOP - STOCK MUSEUMS
8120 STOCK LOSSES
8137 SUBSISTANCE AND TRAVELLING (ABROAD)
8161 TRANSLATIONS
9015 ADMINISTRATION CHARGES - HOUSING
7427 TERMINATION OF SERVICES
8029 PENSIONS AND GRATUITY
Total

LIST OF OTHER EXPENDITU%‘594

41,025
40,781
37,755
32,400
29,990
28,470
27,792
24 248
21,343
20,528
19,602
18,176
16,551
15,180
14,535
14,032
13,777
13,307
13,158
12,075
11,181
9,500
8,118
7,632
5,622
5,400
3,131
3,100
2,942
235

CcC O 0O CcC O 000000

-588,951
416,742,690

121,670
1,438,079
34,872
0
76,436
0
71,700
33,877
111,791
24,803
8,981
9,950
8,093
49,791
2,086

0
417,727
48,794
2,738
12,515
11,293
8,295
8,000
9,188
17,718
34,414
7,800
2,469
4,472
19,887
3,554
75,207
8,585
2,800
204,953
686
7,350
249.212|
88,307
500
1,488
26,304
1,269,550
281,118,928
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POLOKWANE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

CONSOLIDATION JOURNAL ENTRIES

YEAR ENDED: 30/06/2013

Journal Number Description Br Cr
CONS01 Share Capital (PHA) 1,000.00
Investment in PHA (Polokwane Municipalily) 1,000.00
Elimination of Polokwane Municipality shares in PHA
Journal Number Description Dr Cr
CONSD2 Loan from Pololwane Municipality (PHA) 8,217,389.00
Investment in PHA (Polokwane Municipality) 8,217,389.00
Elimination of intragroup toan {2013)
Journal Number Description Or Cr
CONSO3 Loan from Polokwane Municipality (PHA) £,662,528.00
Investment in THA (Potokwane Municipality) §,662,528.00
Elimination of infragroup loan {2012)
Journal Number Description Dr Cr
CONS04 { oan from Pololewane Municipality (PHA) 8,217,389.00
Investment in THA (Poiokwane Municipality) 8,217,389.00
Elimination of intragroup loan (2012)
Journal Number Description Dr Cr
CONS05 Loan from Pelokwane Municipality (PHA) 6,662,528.00
Investment in THA (Polokwane Municipality) 6,662,526.00
Elimination of intragroup loan {2012)
Jourmnal Number Description Dr Cr
CONS05 Interest revenue (Polokwane Municipality) §16,205.00
Interest expense {PHA) 818,206.00
Elimination of current year's intragroup interest
Journal Number Description Dr Cr
GONS07 Interest revenue (Polokwane Municipality) 717, 724,00
Interest expense {PHA} 717,724.00

Elimination of prior year's intragroup interest




Aligning PHA office equipment useful lives to that of the parent entity

Joumal Number Description Dr Cr
CONSo8 Unconditionai grant revenue (PHA) 5,300,000.00
Unconditional grant expense {Polokwane Municipality) 5,300,000.00
Elimination of current year's intragroup uncondiionak grant
Journal Number Description Dr Cr
CONSO9 Unconditional grant revenue (PHA) 5,681,604.50
Unconditional grant expense (Polokwane Municipality) 5,681,694.50
Elimination of prior year's intragroup unconditional grant
Journal Number Description Dr cr
CONS10 Rates and taxes current kability (PHA) 3,207,703.00
Rates and faxes current asset (Polokwane Municipality) 3,207,703.00
Efimination of intragroup financial instrument iro rates
Journal Number Description Dr cr
CONS11 Rates and taxes current ability (PHA) 3,205,240.00
Rates and taxes cLrrent asset (Polokwane Municipality) 3,205,240.00
Elmination of prior year intragroup financial instrument iro rates
Journal Number Description Dr Cr
CONS12 Rales and taxes incoms (Polokwane) 708.519.48
Rates and taxes expense (PHA) 709,619.49
Elimination of current year intragroup property rates
Journal Number Description Dr Cr
CONS13 Rates and taxes income (Polokwane) 786,939.98
Rates and taxes expense (PHA) 785,939.88
Elimination of prior year intragroup property rates
Journai Number Description Dr Cr
CONS14 Depreciation- Office Equipment {PHA) 17,424.22
Accumuiated depraciation- Office Equipment (PHA) 17,424.22




